
 

*Public Comments:  At this time, members of the public may address the Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) regarding any items within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the TOC, provided that no action may be taken on off-agenda items unless authorized by law.  Comments shall be limited to three (3) minutes per 

person, unless different time limits are set by the Chairman, subject to the approval of the TOC. 
 

Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the OCTA Clerk of the Board, 
telephone (714) 560-5676, no less than two business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this 

meeting.   
 

 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Welcome 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Approval of Minutes/Attendance Report for October 8, 2019 
 

4. Action Items  
 

A. M2 Quarterly Revenue & Expenditure Report (June 19) 
Receive and File  

 

B. M2 Quarterly Revenue & Expenditure Report (September 19) 
   Receive and File 
 

C. M2 Quarterly Revenue & Expenditure Report (December 19) 
   Receive and File - Sean Murdock, Director, Finance and Administration 
 

5. Presentation Items  
 

A. Measure M2 2019 Update: Next 10 Delivery Plan   
Tamara Warren, Measure M2 Program Manager 

 

B. Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update  
Jeff Mills, Senior Program Manager, Capital Programs  
Chris Boucly, Section Manager, Public Outreach  

 

C. Measure M2 Community-Based Transit Circulators Program Project V 

Joseph Alcock, Section Manager, M2 Local Programs 
 

6. OCTA Staff Updates  
 

A. Measure M2 Performance Assessment - Tamara Warren, Measure M2 Program Manager 
 

B. Staff Liaison – Alice Rogan, Marketing and Public Outreach Director 
 

7. Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Report 
 

8. Audit Subcommittee Report 
 

9. Environmental Oversight Committee Report 
 

10.  Committee Member Reports 
 

11.  Public Comments* 
 

12.  Adjournment 
 The next meeting will be held on April 14, 2020 

Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
550 S. Main Street, Orange CA, Room 07 

February 11, 2020 @ 5:00 p.m. 
 



 

*Public Comments:  At this time, members of the public may address the Taxpayers Oversight Committee (TOC) regarding any items within 

the subject matter jurisdiction of the TOC, provided that no action may be taken on off-agenda items unless authorized by law.  Comments 

shall be limited to five (5) minutes per person and 20 minutes for all comments, unless different time limits are set by the Chairman, subject to 

the approval of the TOC. 

 

Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the OCTA 

Clerk of the Board, telephone (714) 560-5676, no less than two business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to make reasonable 

arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting.   

 

 
 

 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 

Staff Report Title  Board Meeting Date 

1. 2020 Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators 

Program 
 October 14, 2019 

2. 2019 Measure M2 Sales Tax Forecast  October 28, 2019 

3. Environmental Mitigation Program Endowment Fund 

Investment Report for September 30, 2019 
 November 25, 2019 

4. OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update  November 25, 2019 

5. Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period 

of July 2019 Through September 2019 
 December 9, 2019 

6. Fiscal Year 2019-20 Measure M2 Annual Eligibility 

Review 
 December 9, 2019  

7. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

Semi-Annual Review – September 2019 
 December 9, 2019 

8. Measure M2 Community-Based Transit Circulators 

Program Project V Ridership Report 
 January 13, 2020 

   

 
 

 Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee 



 

 

Measure M Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 S. Main Street, Orange CA, Room 07 

October 8, 2019 @ 5:00 p.m. 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

Committee Members Present: 
Douglas P. Gillen, First District Representative 
Dr. Pauline Merry, First District Representative 
Mark Kizzar, Second District Representative 
Larry Tekler, Second District Representative, Co-Chairman 
Tuan Nguyen, Third District Representative  
Larry Lang, Fourth District Representative 
Michael Pascual, Fourth District Representative 
Jeffery Kaplan, Fifth District Representative 
 
Committee Member(s) Absent: 
Ronald Randolph, Third District Representative 
Douglas Anderson, Fifth District Representative 
 
Orange County Transportation Authority Staff Present: 
Christine Byrne, Department Manager, Public Outreach 
Rose Casey, Highway Programs Director 
Francesca Ching, Measure M2 Program Analyst 
Robert Davis, Treasury and Public Finance Manager 
Jared Hill, Community Relations Specialist 
Kia Mortazavi, Executive Director of Planning 
Sean Murdock, Finance and Administration Director 
Andrew Oftelie, Chief Financial Officer 
Alice Rogan, Director, Marketing & Public Outreach 
Tamara Warren, Measure M Program Manager 
 

1. Welcome 
Co-Chair Larry Tekler welcomed everyone to the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) meeting at 5:04 p.m.  He 
asked everyone to introduce themselves. 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

Co-Chair Larry Tekler led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.   
 

3. Approval of Minutes/Attendance Report for August 13, 2019 
Co-Chairman Larry Tekler asked if there are any corrections to the Minutes/ 
Attendance Report for August 13, 2019.  A motion was made by Douglas P. Gillen, 
seconded by Michael Pascual and carried unanimously to approve the August 13, 
2019 TOC Minutes and the Attendance Report. 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 2 
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 8, 2019 

 
 

 

 
4. Action Items 

A. Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Eligibility Reports Fiscal 
Year 2019-20 

 
Dr. Pauline Merry was selected to be the Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 
(AER Subcommittee) Chair for this eligibility cycle. She stated that the Measure 
M2 ordinance requires all local agencies in Orange County to annually satisfy 
eligibility requirements in order to receive M2 net revenues. Consistent with this 
requirement, The AER subcommittee convened on September 26th with OCTA 
staff to review AER Subcommittee applicable eligibility submittals, in order to 
ensure compliance with M2 Ordinance requirements and to also ensure all 
subcommittee related discussions were open to the public.  
 
As part of the M2 Eligibility review for fiscal year 2019-20, the AER subcommittee 
reviewed documentation for three applicable eligibility components, which 
included the Pavement Management Plan (for 14 applicable jurisdictions), the 
Congestion Management Program, and the Mitigation Fee Program. The AER 
Subcommittee reviewed and confirmed that all 35 local agencies had submitted 
appropriate documentation in order satisfy M2 eligibility requirements for these 
three components for the fiscal year 2019-2020 M2 Eligibility Cycle, and 
recommended advancement of these review conclusions to the TOC for its 
consideration today. 

 
The AER Subcommittee recommends affirming that the Taxpayer Oversight 
Committee has received and reviewed Pavement Management Plans for 
applicable local agencies, Congestion Management Programs, and Mitigation Fee 
Programs for all local agencies in Orange County. However, it should be noted 
that while this recommendation acknowledges the cites of Stanton and Santa 
Ana’s eligibility submittals for fiscal year 2019-2020, their submittal of these 
documents, does not modify their existing ineligible status, which is governed 
through a separate OCTA Board action.  
 
Upon TOC approval of the AER Subcommittee’s recommendation, these findings 
will be advanced to the OCTA Regional Planning & Highways Committee and 
Board of Directors, for approval in December 2019. If the OCTA Board approves 
these findings, they will adopt a conditional eligibility determination (for all 
applicable local agencies) for fiscal year 2019-2020; and then in December, it 
would adopt a final eligibility determination, once review and approval of M2 
expenditure reports has been completed.  
 
Co-Chairman Tekler stated that letters to Santa Ana and Stanton had been sent 
and are awaiting final approval. The audit of these cities will not start until the 
agreements are signed.  



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 3 
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 8, 2019 

 
 

 

A motion was made by Mark Kizzar, seconded by Larry Lang and carried 
unanimously to approve receipt and review of the Pavement Management Plans 
for applicable local agencies, Congestion Management Programs, and Mitigation 
Fee Programs for all local agencies in Orange County. 
 

Presentation Items 
A. Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report 

Francesca Ching presented a Measure M2 quarterly progress report for the period 
of April 2019 through June 2019. She indicated that market trends are forecasting 
higher construction costs going forward. Key topics in the M2 Program 
Management Office are restoring funding eligibility to the cities of Santa Ana and 
Stanton as well as coordination with SB1 projects.  
 
Freeway Program: The M2 Freeway Program, which previously consisted of 27 
projects or project segments, now has 30 projects or project segments to be 
delivered by 2041. Two projects, the Interstate 5 (I-5) between Interstate 405 (I-
405) and State Route 55 (SR-55) (Project B) has now been broken into two 
segments, and State Route 91 (SR-91) between State Route 57 (SR-57) and SR-
55 (Project I) has been broken into three segments. Segmenting takes place to 
provide more opportunity for bidders and to increase competition. While the new 
segment count will be tracked at 30, the increase does not change the overall 
commitment detailed in the plan. 
 
Currently, while commencing year nine of the 30-year program, 12 segments are 
complete, three are in construction, and another three are readying for 
construction. The remaining 12 segments are in various stages of project 
development, with three of those slated to go into construction and be complete 
or nearing completion, by 2026. 
 
Streets and Roads: Since 2011, approximately $777 million has been allocated to 
local jurisdictions for transportation improvements through the streets and roads 
competitive and formula funding programs. Additionally, M2 provided a portion of 
the $664 million to grade separate seven street and rail crossings, leveraging the 
majority of the funds ($520 million) from local, state, and federal sources. 
 
Transit: The M2 transit mode includes a number of programs designed to provide 
additional transportation options. M2 is the main funding source for Metrolink 
commuter rail service in Orange County and provides funding for rail station 
improvements and transit connections to extend the reach of the services.  
 
Since 2011, M2 has provided competitive funding commitments for bus and 
station van extension projects to Metrolink ($483,133 to date), local community 
based transit circulators and planning studies ($36 million to date), bus stop 
improvements ($2 million to date), and funding to support specific programs to 
meet the needs of seniors and persons with disabilities ($69.7 million to date).  



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 4 
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 8, 2019 

 
 

 

Environmental Programs: The M2 Program includes two innovative programs, the 
Environmental Cleanup Program (ECP) with specific activity, and the 
Environmental Mitigation Program (EMP) with funding from the freeway program. 
The ECP improves water quality by addressing transportation related pollutants 
while the EMP off-sets biological impacts of freeway projects. Since 2011, the 
ECP has awarded $48.1 million to local jurisdictions through a competitive 
process, which funded 159 projects for trash removal devices (Tier 1), and 20 
projects for large scale water quality best management practices projects (Tier 2). 
More than 6.2 million cubic feet of trash (or over 2,600 40-foot shipping containers) 
have been captured so far. Additionally, the Board has authorized $55 million for 
the EMP to acquire conservation lands, fund habitat restoration projects, and to 
develop the Conservation Plan. OCTA has acquired more than 1,300 acres and 
funded 12 restoration projects across Orange County. The wildlife and habitat on 
the acquired lands are protected in perpetuity, and long-term management of the 
properties will be funded by an established endowment. It is estimated that it will 
take 12 years to fully fund the endowment with annual deposits, or until the fund 
totals approximately $46.2 million. As of June 30, 2019, the balance of the 
endowment was $9,534,374. The fourth deposit, of approximately $2.9 million, 
took place on July 3, 2019.  
 
Applications for the ninth Tier 1 call are being reviewed, and final programming 
recommendations are planned to be presented to the Board on September 9, 
2019.  
 

B. Freeway Projects Update 
Rose Casey provided an update on Freeway Projects.   
 
Project F is on the SR-55 (from 1-5 to SR-91) and it is nearing end of the 
environmental phase.  This project has a no build alternative and one build 
alternative which will add one general purpose lane in each direction between the 
I-5 and SR-22 along with restructuring on/off-ramps.  The public hearing on this 
project is October 16.   
 
Project A on the I-5 (from SR-55 to SR-57) and has started construction with 
completion due in early 2021.  This project adds a second High Occupancy 
Vehicle (HOV) lane in each direction and the concrete barrier is being removed 
between the HOV lanes and general purpose lanes, so there can be continuous 
access.   
 
Project C on the I-5 (from SR-73 to El Toro).  She said this project has been 
broken-up into three segments.  Segment 1 will hopefully have an executed 
construction contract in the next few days.  Segment 2 is under construction.  
Construction is expected to start in late 2020 on the Segment 3.  Lanes will be 
added in the project and HOV lanes will be extended along with reconstruction of 
interchanges/ramps.   



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 5 
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 8, 2019 

 
 

 

 
Project K is on the I-405 (from the SR-73 to the I-605) will add a general purpose 
lane in each direction in addition to a toll express facility.  This project will require 
18 bridge replacements.  Rose said this project is currently underway and the 
design-builder is reaching its peak of activity with the project costing about $1 
million a day at this time.  This project is projected to be complete in 2023. 

 
C. Investment Policy Update 

Robert Davis provided an overview of the OCTA Investment Policy. He stated that 
The Federal Reserve (Fed) cut the Fed Funds rate twice during the quarter to a 
range of 1.75 to 2 percent. The Fed is expected to cut rates again before year 
end. 
 
Economic growth remains positive but cautious at the end of the third quarter. 
Rate cuts by the Fed has led to uncertainty and volatility within the market. 
Furthermore, the trade war between the United States (U.S.) and China heated 
up further during the quarter as both countries imposed additional tariffs on the 
other, leading to negative effects for both countries in the short run. The U.S. 
unemployment rate fell to 3.5 percent in September, while the economy added 
135,000 jobs at quarter end.  
 
As of September 30, 2019, the M2 Program has $635.2 million in outstanding 
debt. 
 
Robert Davis provided an overview of the current investment allocations.  
 

D. Measure M2 Next 10:  Market Conditions Forecast and Risk Analysis 
Tamara Warren gave an overview of Next 10. The Next 10 provides a framework 
to accelerate the delivery of M2 freeway, streets and roads, transit, and 
environmental projects through the year 2026.  
 
The Market Conditions Key Indicators Analysis and Forecast concludes that the 
Orange County Transportation Authority may experience a cost increase of 
between two percent and six percent during the 2020 through 2022 time period of 
construction activity. To reduce the potential risk of cost pressure and project 
delivery slowdowns due to unanticipated cost increases, staff will incorporate 
information from this analysis into the Measure M2 cash flow for the 2019 updated 
Next 10 Delivery Plan, which will be presented to the Executive Committee and 
Board of Directors in November 2019. 

 
6. OCTA Staff Updates 

A. Measure M2 Sales Tax Forecast Update – Sean Murdock.  
Sean Murdock gave an update on the future expected revenue of Measure M2.  

 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 6 
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 8, 2019 

 
 

 

He stated that OCTA has finalized this year’s sales tax forecast for the M2 
Program.  For the first time in 4 years the forecasted sales tax for the M2 Program 
is anticipated to increase.  The last 4 years had seen the forecasted M2 sales tax 
decrease from $15.9BN to $13.1BN, however based on the updated forecast the 
sales tax available to the M2 Program is $13.4 BN, which is up $300M from last 
year’s forecast.  The change was primarily driven by sales tax receipts exceeding 
expectations in FY 2019 and MuniServices being more optimistic in the latter part 
of their 5-year forecast. Two of the three universities had slightly lower long-term 
growth rates and one held their long-term growth rates flat. 
 

B. Finance Directors Workshop Update – Sean Murdock 
Sean Murdock gave an update on the Finance Directors Workshop hosted by 
OCTA.  
 
OCTA held its annual workshop on August 27th for the finance directors of the 
local jurisdictions in the County.  The goal of the workshop is to invite city finance 
directors and their staff to OCTA and provide them important information related 
to the M2 Program. OCTA staff from Finance, audit, and planning provide 
information on areas such as eligibility, timely use of funds guidelines, changes to 
reporting requirements, maintenance of effort requirements, audits as well as an 
update on forecasted M2 sales tax.  The workshop is one of the tools OCTA staff 
uses to educate the local jurisdictions on the requirements of the M2 Program and 
help them maintain eligibility.  Over the past few years attendance has continued 
to grow at the workshop and this year approximately 70 staff members from local 
jurisdictions attended. 

 
C. Staff Liaison Update – Alice Rogan.  

Alice Rogan yielded to Christina Byrne to provide an additional update on the  
I-405 Improvement Project. Christina stated that there will be 14 bridges under 
construction by the end of 2019 and we are approaching peak construction. 
 
Larry Tekler said that he frequently uses the I-405 and has noted that the project 
has been easy to navigate and been moving forward smoothly.  
 

7. Annual Eligibility Review (AER) Subcommittee Report 
AER Subcommittee Chair, Dr. Pauline Merry, stated that they are not scheduled to 
meet again until March 2020. At that time the AER Subcommittee will receive and 
review M2 Expenditure Reports for fiscal year 2018-2019.  Upon completion of the 
Subcommittee’s review, we will advance our findings to this committee for further 
review and consideration 

 
8. Annual Audit Subcommittee Report 

There was no meeting to report on.   
 
 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 7 
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 8, 2019 

 
 

 

9. Environmental Oversight Committee (EOC) Report 
Dr. Pauline Merry provided an update on the EOC. She stated that they have not 
had an EOC meeting since July 10, so we have nothing specific to report at this 
time. However, they have an upcoming hike on Nov. 2 at 9 a.m. at the Trabuco 
Rose Preserve in Trabuco Canyon. Dr. Merry attended the Pacific Horizon Preserve 
hike in August and enjoyed the opportunity. Our next EOC meeting will be on Nov. 
6. 
 

10. Committee Member Reports 
There were no committee member comments. 
 

11. Public Comments 
There were no public comments. 

 

12. Adjournment 
Next meeting scheduled for December 10, 2019 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 
Attendance Record 

X = Present E = Excused Absence * = Absence Pending Approval U = Unexcused Absence     -- = Resigned                                                                                                                               
  

July 13-Aug. Sept. 8-Oct. Nov. 10-Dec. Jan.  11-Feb. March 14-Apr. May 9-Jun. Meeting Date 

Douglas P. Gillen  X  X  M  --  --  --X 
        E       
Pauline Merry   X  X  E  X  X    -- X 
        T       
Larry Tekler  X  X  I  X  X  X  
      N       
Mark Kizzar   X  X  G  X  X  X 
             
Ronald T. Randolph   X  *  C  --  --  -- 
      A       
Tuan Nguyen  X  X  N  X  X  X 
      C      * 
Larry A. Lang  X  X  E  X  U  U 
Fairport       L      X 
Michael Pascual  X  X  L      X 
      E       
Jeffrey Kaplan   X  X  D  X  X  U 
             X 
Douglas Anderson  X  *    X  X  X 

 
Absences Pending Approval 

Meeting Date Name Reason 

October 8, 2019 Ronald T. Randolph Family Medical Emergency 

October 8, 2019 Douglas Anderson Business Conflict  
 







Schedule 1

Period from
Quarter Ended Year to Date Inception to

($ in thousands) June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019
(A) (B)

Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 82,965           $ 338,666       $ 2,413,727    
Other agencies' share of Measure M2 costs:

Project related (7,560)            43,475         667,785       
Non-project related -                 -               453              

Interest:
Operating:

Project related 551                636              1,228           
Non-project related 21,374           29,244         52,356         

Bond proceeds 5,475             10,169         61,487         
Debt service 187                506              813              
Commercial paper -                 -               393              

Right-of-way leases 27                  30                941              
Proceeds on sale of assets held for resale -                 -               12,201         
Donated assets held for resale

Project related -                 2,071           2,071           
Non-project related (371)               (2,071)          -               

Miscellaneous:
Project related -                 -               270              
Non-project related -                 -               100              

Total revenues 102,648         422,726       3,213,825    

Expenditures:
Supplies and services:

Sales tax administration fees 909                3,473           26,292         
Professional services:

Project related 17,445           36,692         381,802       
Non-project related 1,603             4,784           26,785         

Administration costs:
Project related 2,519             10,087         73,268         
Non-project related:

Salaries and Benefits 643                2,574           25,107         
Other 1,326             5,302           42,017         

Other:
Project related 29                  86                5,026           
Non-project related 44                  908              4,916           

Payments to local agencies:
Project related 32,495           107,923       945,857       

Capital outlay:
Project related 96,281           169,281       1,025,983    
Non-project related -                 -               31                

Debt service:
Principal payments on long-term debt -                 8,165           50,500         
Interest on long-term debt and 
   commercial paper 9                    20,676         178,614       

Total expenditures 153,303         369,951       2,786,198    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (50,655)          52,775         427,627       

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out:

Project related (16,590)          (166,072)      (204,679)      
Transfers in:

Project related 74,969           75,770         158,470       
Non-project related (70,243)          (70,243)        (70,243)        

Bond proceeds -                 446,032       804,625       
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent -                 (45,062)        (45,062)        

Total other financing sources (uses) (11,864)          240,425       643,111       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures
and other sources (uses) $ (62,519)          $ 293,200       $ 1,070,738    

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

as of June 30, 2019

(Unaudited)

 1



Schedule 2

Period from Period from

Inception July 1, 2019

Quarter Ended Year to Date through through

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019 March 31, 2041

($ in thousands) (actual) (actual) (actual) (forecast) Total

(C.1) (D.1) (E.1) (F.1)

Revenues:

Sales taxes $ 82,965        $ 338,666     $ 2,413,727  $ 10,657,522      $ 13,071,249 

Operating interest 21,374        29,244       52,356       139,989           192,345      

   Subtotal 104,339      367,910     2,466,083  10,797,511      13,263,594 

Other agencies share of M2 costs -              -            453            -                   453             

Miscellaneous -              -            100            -                   100             

Total revenues 104,339      367,910     2,466,636  10,797,511      13,264,147 

Administrative expenditures:

Sales tax administration fees 909             3,473         26,292       123,125           149,417      

Professional services 1,603          4,784         23,010       97,884             120,894      

Administration costs: -              -            -            -              

Salaries and Benefits 643             2,574         25,107       113,436           138,543      

Other 1,326          5,302         42,017       185,485           227,502      

Other 44               82              1,915         8,546               10,461        

Capital outlay -              -            31              -                   31               

Environmental cleanup 2,477          7,118         41,865       213,116           254,981      

Total expenditures 7,002          23,333       160,237     741,592           901,829      

Net revenues $ 97,337        $ 344,577     $ 2,306,399  $ 10,055,919      $ 12,362,318 

(C.2) (D.2) (E.2) (F.2)

Bond revenues:

Proceeds from issuance of bonds $ -              $ 446,032     $ 804,625     $ 1,425,000        $ 2,229,625   

Interest revenue from bond proceeds 5,475          10,169       61,487       94,619             156,106      

Interest revenue from debt service funds 187             506            813            4,685               5,498          

Interest revenue from commercial paper -              -            393            -                   393             

Total bond revenues 5,662          456,707     867,318     1,524,304        2,391,622   

Financing expenditures and uses:

Professional services -              -            3,775         4,988               8,763          

Payment to refunded bond escrow -              45,062       45,062       -                   45,062        

Bond debt principal -              8,165         50,500       2,060,220        2,110,720   

Bond debt and other interest expense 9                 20,676       178,614     932,293           1,110,907   

Other -              826            3,001         -                   3,001          

Total financing expenditures and uses 9                 74,729       280,952     2,997,501        3,278,453   

Net bond revenues (debt service) $ 5,653          $ 381,978     $ 586,366     $ (1,473,197)       $ (886,831)     

Measure M2

Schedule of Calculations of Net Revenues and Net Bond Revenues (Debt Service)

as of June 30, 2019

(Unaudited)

 2



Schedule 3

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of June 30, 2019

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description June 30, 2019 Net Revenues June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019 M2 Cost

(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

A I-5 Santa Ana Freeway Interchange Improvements $ 90,907          $ 487,262        $ 7,486        $ 7,101        $ 385           

B I-5 Santa Ana/SR-55 to El Toro 58,064          311,226        9,603        6,515        3,088        

C I-5 San Diego/South of El Toro 121,273        650,027        143,359    46,689      96,670      

D I-5 Santa Ana/San Diego Interchange Upgrades 49,902          267,476        2,179        527           1,652        

E SR-22 Garden Grove Freeway Access Improvements 23,210          124,407        4               -            4               

F SR-55 Costa Mesa Freeway Improvements 70,791          379,443        27,831      14,200      13,631      

G SR-57 Orange Freeway Improvements 50,038          268,202        51,174      12,071      39,103      

H SR-91 Improvements from I-5 to SR-57 27,079          145,142        34,792      824           33,968      

I SR-91 Improvements from SR-57 to SR-55 80,559          431,797        23,265      6,782        16,483      

J SR-91 Improvements from SR-55 to County Line 68,122          365,136        6,935        5,294        1,641        

K I-405 Improvements between I-605 to SR-55 207,500        1,112,202     488,526    104,049    384,477    

L I-405 Improvements between SR-55 to I-5 61,836          331,442        9,163        6,941        2,222        

M I-605 Freeway Access Improvements 3,868             20,735          2,106        16             2,090        

N All Freeway Service Patrol 29,013          155,509        2,379        -            2,379        

Freeway Mitigation 49,588          265,790        53,421      2,935        50,486      

Subtotal Projects 991,750        5,315,796     862,223    213,944    648,279    

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                44,913      -            44,913      

Total Freeways $ 991,750        $ 5,315,796     $ 907,136    $ 213,944    $ 693,192    

     % 37.0%

O Regional Capacity Program $ 230,643        $ 1,236,248     $ 742,532    $ 461,670    $ 280,862    

P Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 92,253          494,477        60,311      4,950        55,361      

Q Local Fair Share Program 415,152        2,225,217     401,621    77             401,544    

Subtotal Projects 738,048        3,955,942     1,204,464 466,697    737,767    

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                49,885      -            49,885      

Total Street and Roads Projects $ 738,048        $ 3,955,942     $ 1,254,349 $ 466,697    $ 787,652    

     % 42.0%

Freeways (43% of Net Revenues)

Street and Roads Projects (32% of Net Revenues)

 3



Schedule 3

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of June 30, 2019

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description June 30, 2019 Net Revenues June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019 M2 Cost

(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

R High Frequency Metrolink Service $ 217,441        $ 1,232,958     $ 290,390    $ 98,736      $ 191,654    

S Transit Extensions to Metrolink 203,602        1,091,306     56,858      2,133        54,725      

T Metrolink Gateways 30,144          63,187          98,220      60,956      37,264      

U Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons

   with Disabilities 74,208          428,665        71,627      88             71,539      

V Community Based Transit/Circulators 46,116          247,181        9,875        94             9,781        

W Safe Transit Stops 5,090             27,283          1,093        26             1,067        

Subtotal Projects 576,601        3,090,580     528,063    162,033    366,030    

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                27,899      -            27,899      

Total Transit Projects $ 576,601        $ 3,090,580     $ 555,962    $ 162,033    $ 393,929    

     % 21.0%

$ 2,306,399     $ 12,362,318   $ 2,717,447 $ 842,674    $ 1,874,773 

Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description June 30, 2019 Revenues June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019 M2 Cost

(G) (H.1) (I.1) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

X Clean Up Highway and Street Runoff 

  that Pollutes Beaches $ 49,322          $ 265,272        $ 41,865      $ 292           $ 41,573      

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                -            -            -            

Total Environmental Cleanup $ 49,322          $ 265,272        $ 41,865      $ 292           $ 41,573      

     % 1.7%

Collect Sales Taxes (1.5% of Sales Taxes) $ 36,206          $ 196,069        $ 26,292      $ -            $ 26,292      

     % 1.1%

Oversight and Annual Audits (1% of Revenues) $ 24,661          $ 132,636        $ 25,107      $ 446           $ 24,661      

     % 1.0%

Taxpayer Safeguards and Audits

Transit Projects (25% of Net Revenues)

Measure M2 Program

Environmental Cleanup (2% of Revenues)

 4



Schedule 1

Period from
Quarter Ended Year to Date Inception to

($ in thousands) Sept 30, 2019 Sept 30, 2019 Sept 30, 2019
(A) (B)

Revenues:

Sales taxes $ 78,221           $ 78,221         $ 2,491,948    

Other agencies' share of Measure M2 costs:

Project related 25,145           25,145         692,930       

Non-project related -                 -               454              

Interest:

Operating:

Project related (160)               (160)             1,068           

Non-project related 5,584             5,584           57,940         

Bond proceeds 2,629             2,629           64,116         

Debt service 111                111              924              

Commercial paper -                 -               393              

Right-of-way leases 40                  40                981              

Proceeds on sale of assets held for resale -                 -               12,201         

Donated assets held for resale

Project related -                 -               2,071           

Miscellaneous:

Project related 17                  17                287              

Non-project related -                 -               100              

Total revenues 111,587         111,587       3,325,413    

Expenditures:
Supplies and services:

Sales tax administration fees 1,001             1,001           27,293         

Professional services:
Project related 2,259             2,259           384,061       

Non-project related 612                612              27,397         

Administration costs:

Project related 2,517             2,517           75,785         

Non-project related:
Salaries and Benefits 643                643              25,750         

Other 1,325             1,325           43,342         
Other:

Project related 5                    5                  5,031           

Non-project related 49                  49                4,965           

Payments to local agencies:

Project related 12,410           12,410         958,267       

Capital outlay:

Project related 14,234           14,234         1,040,217    

Non-project related -                 -               31                

Debt service:

Principal payments on long-term debt -                 -               50,500         
Interest on long-term debt and 
   commercial paper 17,518           17,518         196,132       

Total expenditures 52,573           52,573         2,838,771    

Excess of revenues over expenditures 59,014           59,014         486,642       

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers out:
Project related (5,345)            (5,345)          (210,024)      

Transfers in:
Project related -                 -               158,470       

Bond proceeds -                 -               804,625       

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent -                 -               (45,062)        

Total other financing sources (uses) (5,345)            (5,345)          708,009       

Excess of revenues over expenditures and other sources (uses) $ 53,669           $ 53,669         $ 1,194,651    

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

as of September 30, 2019

(Unaudited)

1



Schedule 2

Period from Period from

Inception October 1, 2019

Quarter Ended Year to Date through through

Sept 30, 2019 Sept 30, 2019 Sept 30, 2019 March 31, 2041

($ in thousands) (actual) (actual) (actual) (forecast) Total

(C.1) (D.1) (E.1) (F.1)

Revenues:

Sales taxes $ 78,221        $ 78,221       $ 2,491,948  $ 10,881,259      $ 13,373,207 

Operating interest 5,584          5,584         57,940       295,147           353,087      

   Subtotal 83,805        83,805       2,549,888  11,176,406      13,726,294 

Other agencies share of M2 costs -              -            454            -                   454             

Miscellaneous -              -            100            -                   100             

Total revenues 83,805        83,805       2,550,442  11,176,406      13,726,848 

Administrative expenditures:

Sales tax administration fees 1,001          1,001         27,293       120,348           147,641      

Professional services 612             612            23,622       103,993           127,615      

Administration costs: -              -            -            -              

Salaries and Benefits 643             643            25,750       125,083           150,833      

Other 1,325          1,325         43,342       213,829           257,171      

Other 30               30              1,945         8,649               10,594        

Capital outlay -              -            31              -                   31               

Environmental cleanup 383             383            42,248       217,590           259,838      

Total expenditures 3,994          3,994         164,231     789,492           953,723      

Net revenues $ 79,811        $ 79,811       $ 2,386,211  $ 10,386,914      $ 12,773,125 

(C.2) (D.2) (E.2) (F.2)

Bond revenues:

Proceeds from issuance of bonds $ -              $ -            $ 804,625     $ 298,950           $ 1,103,575   

Interest revenue from bond proceeds 2,629          2,629         64,116       85,077             149,193      

Interest revenue from debt service funds 111             111            924            4,668               5,592          

Interest revenue from commercial paper -              -            393            -                   393             

Total bond revenues 2,740          2,740         870,058     388,695           1,258,753   

Financing expenditures and uses:

Professional services -              -            3,775         1,046               4,821          

Payment to refunded bond escrow -              -            45,062       -                   45,062        

Bond debt principal -              -            50,500       929,889           980,389      

Bond debt and other interest expense 17,518        17,518       196,132     608,303           804,435      

Other 19               19              3,020         -                   3,020          

Total financing expenditures and uses 17,537        17,537       298,489     1,539,238        1,837,727   

Net bond revenues (debt service) $ (14,797)       $ (14,797)      $ 571,569     $ (1,150,543)       $ (578,974)     

Measure M2

Schedule of Calculations of Net Revenues and Net Bond Revenues (Debt Service)

as of September 30, 2019

(Unaudited)

2



Schedule 3

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of September 30, 2019

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description Sept 30, 2019 Net Revenues Sept 30, 2019 Sept 30, 2019 M2 Cost

(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

A I-5 Santa Ana Freeway Interchange Improvements $ 94,053          $ 503,454        $ 7,500        $ 7,101        $ 399           

B I-5 Santa Ana/SR-55 to El Toro 60,074          321,568        9,636        6,515        3,121        

C I-5 San Diego/South of El Toro 125,470        671,629        145,347    46,730      98,617      

D I-5 Santa Ana/San Diego Interchange Upgrades 51,629          276,364        2,220        527           1,693        

E SR-22 Garden Grove Freeway Access Improvements 24,012          128,542        5               -            5               

F SR-55 Costa Mesa Freeway Improvements 73,241          392,053        28,454      14,605      13,849      

G SR-57 Orange Freeway Improvements 51,769          277,114        51,191      12,217      38,974      

H SR-91 Improvements from I-5 to SR-57 28,016          149,965        34,823      824           33,999      

I SR-91 Improvements from SR-57 to SR-55 83,347          446,146        23,337      6,782        16,555      

J SR-91 Improvements from SR-55 to County Line 70,480          377,269        6,935        5,294        1,641        

K I-405 Improvements between I-605 to SR-55 214,681        1,149,161     499,853    106,328    393,525    

L I-405 Improvements between SR-55 to I-5 63,976          342,456        9,178        6,954        2,224        

M I-605 Freeway Access Improvements 4,002             21,424          2,114        16             2,098        

N All Freeway Service Patrol 30,017          160,677        2,406        -            2,406        

Freeway Mitigation 51,304          274,622        53,597      2,775        50,822      

Subtotal Projects 1,026,071     5,492,444     876,596    216,668    659,928    

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                50,328      -            50,328      

Total Freeways $ 1,026,071     $ 5,492,444     $ 926,924    $ 216,668    $ 710,256    

     % 37.4%

O Regional Capacity Program $ 238,624        $ 1,277,328     $ 745,599    $ 483,192    $ 262,407    

P Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 95,445          510,909        61,400      4,957        56,443      

Q Local Fair Share Program 429,518        2,299,163     412,442    77             412,365    

Subtotal Projects 763,587        4,087,400     1,219,441 488,226    731,215    

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                55,903      -            55,903      

Total Street and Roads Projects $ 763,587        $ 4,087,400     $ 1,275,344 $ 488,226    $ 787,118    

     % 41.4%

Freeways (43% of Net Revenues)

Street and Roads Projects (32% of Net Revenues)

3



Schedule 3

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of September 30, 2019

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description Sept 30, 2019 Net Revenues Sept 30, 2019 Sept 30, 2019 M2 Cost

(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

R High Frequency Metrolink Service $ 225,401        $ 1,273,930     $ 290,466    $ 98,736      $ 191,730    

S Transit Extensions to Metrolink 210,647        1,127,571     61,662      2,133        59,529      

T Metrolink Gateways 30,552          65,286          98,220      60,956      37,264      

U Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons

   with Disabilities 76,975          442,910        73,708      88             73,620      

V Community Based Transit/Circulators 47,712          255,395        9,939        883           9,056        

W Safe Transit Stops 5,266             28,189          1,105        26             1,079        

Subtotal Projects 596,553        3,193,281     535,100    162,822    372,278    

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                31,263      -            31,263      

Total Transit Projects $ 596,553        $ 3,193,281     $ 566,363    $ 162,822    $ 403,541    

     % 21.2%

$ 2,386,211     $ 12,773,125   $ 2,768,631 $ 867,716    $ 1,900,915 

Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description Sept 30, 2019 Revenues Sept 30, 2019 Sept 30, 2019 M2 Cost

(G) (H.1) (I.1) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

X Clean Up Highway and Street Runoff 

  that Pollutes Beaches $ 50,998          $ 274,526        $ 42,248      $ 292           $ 41,956      

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                -            -            -            

Total Environmental Cleanup $ 50,998          $ 274,526        $ 42,248      $ 292           $ 41,956      

     % 1.6%

Collect Sales Taxes (1.5% of Sales Taxes) $ 37,379          $ 200,598        $ 27,293      $ -            $ 27,293      

     % 1.1%

Oversight and Annual Audits (1% of Revenues) $ 25,499          $ 137,263        $ 25,750      $ 251           $ 25,499      

     % 1.0%

Taxpayer Safeguards and Audits

Transit Projects (25% of Net Revenues)

Measure M2 Program

Environmental Cleanup (2% of Revenues)

4



Schedule 1

Period from
Quarter Ended Year to Date Inception to

($ in thousands) Dec 31, 2019 Dec 31, 2019 Dec 31, 2019
(A) (B)

Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 86,119          $ 164,338       $ 2,578,067    
Other agencies' share of Measure M2 costs:

Project related 27,102          52,247         720,032       
Non-project related -                -               454              

Interest:
Operating:

Project related 458               298              1,526           
Non-project related 4,084            9,668           62,024         

Bond proceeds 2,523            5,152           66,639         

Debt service 54                 165              978              

Commercial paper -                -               393              

Right-of-way leases 29                 69                1,010           
Proceeds on sale of assets held for resale -                -               12,201         

Donated assets held for resale
Project related -                -               2,071           

Miscellaneous:
Project related -                17                287              

Non-project related -                -               100              

Total revenues 120,369         231,954       3,445,782    

Expenditures:
Supplies and services:

Sales tax administration fees 956               1,957           28,249         

Professional services:
Project related 7,596            9,855           391,657       

Non-project related 886               1,498           28,283         

Administration costs:
Project related 2,519            5,035           78,304         

Non-project related:
Salaries and Benefits 643               1,286           26,393         

Other 1,326            2,653           44,668         

Other:
Project related 78                 82                5,109           

Non-project related 187               237              5,152           

Payments to local agencies:
Project related 20,926          33,336         979,193       

Capital outlay:
Project related 69,916          84,150         1,110,133    

Non-project related -                -               31                
Debt service:

Principal payments on long-term debt -                -               50,500         
Interest on long-term debt and commercial paper 6                   17,524         196,138       

Total expenditures 105,039         157,614       2,943,811    
Excess of revenues over expenditures 15,330          74,340         501,972       

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out:

Project related (16,837)         (22,182)        (226,861)      
Transfers in:

Project related 14,460          14,460         172,930       
Bond proceeds -                -               804,625       
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent -                -               (45,062)        

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,377)           (7,722)          705,632       

Excess of revenues over expenditures and other sources$ 12,953          $ 66,618         $ 1,207,604    

Measure M2
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

as of December 31, 2019
(Unaudited)

 1



Schedule 2

Period from Period from

Inception January 1, 2020

Quarter Ended Year to Date through through

Dec 31, 2019 Dec 31, 2019 Dec 31, 2019 March 31, 2041

($ in thousands) (actual) (actual) (actual) (forecast) Total

(C.1) (D.1) (E.1) (F.1)

Revenues:

Sales taxes $ 86,119        $ 164,338     $ 2,578,067  $ 10,794,597      $ 13,372,664 

Operating interest 4,084          9,668         62,024       292,796           354,820      

   Subtotal 90,203        174,006     2,640,091  11,087,393      13,727,484 

Other agencies share of M2 costs -              -            454            -                   454             

Miscellaneous -              -            100            -                   100             

Total revenues 90,203        174,006     2,640,645  11,087,393      13,728,038 

Administrative expenditures:

Sales tax administration fees 956             1,957         28,249       119,389           147,638      

Professional services 886             1,498         24,508       102,326           126,834      

Administration costs: -              -            -            -              

Salaries and Benefits 643             1,286         26,393       111,544           137,937      

Other 1,326          2,653         44,668       187,748           232,416      

Other 187             218            2,132         8,425               10,557        

Capital outlay -              -            31              -                   31               

Environmental cleanup 641             1,024         42,889       215,857           258,746      

Total expenditures 4,639          8,636         168,870     745,289           914,159      

Net revenues $ 85,564        $ 165,370     $ 2,471,775  $ 10,342,104      $ 12,813,879 

(C.2) (D.2) (E.2) (F.2)

Bond revenues:

Proceeds from issuance of bonds $ -              $ -            $ 804,625     $ 298,950           $ 1,103,575   

Interest revenue from bond proceeds 2,523          5,152         66,639       83,659             150,298      

Interest revenue from debt service funds 54               165            978            4,650               5,628          

Interest revenue from commercial paper -              -            393            -                   393             

Total bond revenues 2,577          5,317         872,635     387,259           1,259,894   

Financing expenditures and uses:

Professional services -              -            3,775         1,046               4,821          

Payment to refunded bond escrow -              -            45,062       -                   45,062        

Bond debt principal -              -            50,500       935,220           985,720      

Bond debt and other interest expense 6                 17,524       196,138     599,405           795,543      

Commercial paper interest expense

Other -              19              3,020         -                   3,020          

Total financing expenditures and uses 6                 17,543       298,495     1,535,671        1,834,166   

Net bond revenues (debt service) $ 2,571          $ (12,226)      $ 574,140     $ (1,148,412)       $ (574,272)     

Measure M2

Schedule of Calculations of Net Revenues and Net Bond Revenues (Debt Service)

as of December 31, 2019

(Unaudited)

 2



Schedule 3

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of December 31, 2019

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description Dec 31, 2019 Net Revenues Dec 31, 2019 Dec 31, 2019 M2 Cost

(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

A I-5 Santa Ana Freeway Interchange Improvements $ 97,426          $ 505,061        $ 8,025        $ 7,101        $ 924           

B I-5 Santa Ana/SR-55 to El Toro 62,228          322,594        9,744        6,515        3,229        

C I-5 San Diego/South of El Toro 129,971        673,772        163,318    46,759      116,559    

D I-5 Santa Ana/San Diego Interchange Upgrades 53,480          277,246        2,262        527           1,735        

E SR-22 Garden Grove Freeway Access Improvements 24,876          128,951        5               -            5               

F SR-55 Costa Mesa Freeway Improvements 75,867          393,303        30,399      14,605      15,794      

G SR-57 Orange Freeway Improvements 53,625          277,997        51,298      12,217      39,081      

H SR-91 Improvements from I-5 to SR-57 29,020          150,444        34,855      824           34,031      

I SR-91 Improvements from SR-57 to SR-55 86,335          447,570        23,413      22,005      1,408        

J SR-91 Improvements from SR-55 to County Line 73,007          378,473        6,936        5,520        1,416        

K I-405 Improvements between I-605 to SR-55 222,378        1,152,828     554,483    114,165    440,318    

L I-405 Improvements between SR-55 to I-5 66,270          343,549        9,192        6,954        2,238        

M I-605 Freeway Access Improvements 4,146             21,492          2,124        16             2,108        

N All Freeway Service Patrol 31,093          161,190        5,890        -            5,890        

Freeway Mitigation 53,143          275,498        54,048      3,233        50,815      

Subtotal Projects 1,062,865     5,509,968     955,992    240,441    715,551    

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                49,388      -            49,388      

Total Freeways $ 1,062,865     $ 5,509,968     $ 1,005,380 $ 240,441    $ 764,939    

     % 38.8%

O Regional Capacity Program $ 247,180        $ 1,281,404     $ 754,543    $ 501,300    $ 253,243    

P Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 98,868          512,539        64,391      5,054        59,337      

Q Local Fair Share Program 444,920        2,306,498     422,953    77             422,876    

Subtotal Projects 790,968        4,100,441     1,241,887 506,431    735,456    

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                54,856      -            54,856      

Total Street and Roads Projects $ 790,968        $ 4,100,441     $ 1,296,743 $ 506,431    $ 790,312    

     % 40.0%

Freeways (43% of Net Revenues)

Street and Roads Projects (32% of Net Revenues)

3



Schedule 3

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of December 31, 2019

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description Dec 31, 2019 Net Revenues Dec 31, 2019 Dec 31, 2019 M2 Cost

(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

R High Frequency Metrolink Service $ 233,934        $ 1,277,994     $ 290,728    $ 98,743      $ 191,985    

S Transit Extensions to Metrolink 218,200        1,131,169     74,438      2,133        72,305      

T Metrolink Gateways 30,989          65,495          98,220      60,956      37,264      

U Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons

   with Disabilities 79,942          444,323        75,727      88             75,639      

V Community Based Transit/Circulators 49,422          256,210        10,260      947           9,313        

W Safe Transit Stops 5,455             28,279          1,117        26             1,091        

Subtotal Projects 617,942        3,203,470     550,490    162,893    387,597    

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                30,679      -            30,679      

Total Transit Projects $ 617,942        $ 3,203,470     $ 581,169    $ 162,893    $ 418,276    

     % 21.2%

$ 2,471,775     $ 12,813,879   $ 2,883,292 $ 909,765    $ 1,973,527 

Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description Dec 31, 2019 Revenues Dec 31, 2019 Dec 31, 2019 M2 Cost

(G) (H.1) (I.1) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

X Clean Up Highway and Street Runoff 

  that Pollutes Beaches $ 52,802          $ 274,550        $ 42,889      $ 292           $ 42,597      

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                -            -            -            

Total Environmental Cleanup $ 52,802          $ 274,550        $ 42,889      $ 292           $ 42,597      

     % 1.6%

Collect Sales Taxes (1.5% of Sales Taxes) $ 38,671          $ 200,590        $ 28,249      $ -            $ 28,249      

     % 1.1%

Oversight and Annual Audits (1% of Revenues) $ 26,401          $ 137,275        $ 26,393      $ -            $ 26,393      

     % 1.0%

Taxpayer Safeguards and Audits

Transit Projects (25% of Net Revenues)

Measure M2 Program

Environmental Cleanup (2% of Revenues)

4







 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

November 4, 2019 
 
 
To: Executive Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Measure M2 2019 Update:  Next 10 Delivery Plan  
 
 
Overview 
 
The Measure M2 Next 10 Delivery Plan was approved on November 14, 2016, 
incorporating the 2016 revenue forecast with a plan for continued acceleration 
of the delivery of Measure M2 freeway, streets and roads, transit, and 
environmental projects through the year 2026. With annual updates to the 
Measure M2 sales tax revenue forecasts, staff reviewed the Next 10 Delivery 
Plan 2018 update and, once again, confirmed that it remains deliverable.  
The results of this effort are presented to the Board of Directors. 
 
Recommendations 
 
A. Adopt the 2019 Measure M2 Next 10 Delivery Plan with updated financial 

assumptions.  
 

B. Direct staff to continue to monitor revenue and project cost impacts that 
could affect the delivery plan and return to the Board of Directors with 
changes if necessary. 

 
Background 
 
Expedited delivery of Measure M2 (M2) began in 2007 and has continued  
to date in an effort to bring transportation improvements to the public as early as 
possible. The 2008 Great Recession and growth in online sales and changes to 
consumer spending habits resulted in reductions to the M2 sales tax revenue 
forecast.  In response, the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) 
Board of Directors (Board) proactively revised the forecasting methodology and 
adjusted delivery plans to ensure the M2 plan of projects and programs is 
implemented as promised to the voters.   
 
  



Measure M2 2019 Update:  Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 2 
 

 

 

The initial strategy to overcome the drop in M2 revenues for the freeway program 
included reliance on external revenues rather than exclusive use of  
M2 revenues, as originally designed.  This strategy, combined with availability of 
one-time state and federal grants and effective use of bonding, allowed OCTA 
to capitalize on competitive construction market conditions to continue expedited 
delivery of M2 Capital Program elements.  
 
To date, there have been three early delivery plans. These include: an  
Early Action Plan adopted in 2007, an M2020 Plan adopted in 2012 (intended to 
go through 2020 but replaced in 2016 to address changes in  
M2 revenues), and the Next 10 Delivery Plan (Next 10 Plan) adopted on 
November 14, 2016, that spans ten years through 2026. 
 
With the adoption of the Next 10 Plan, the Board directed staff to dedicate and 
set aside local revenues through the allocation of net excess 91 Express Lanes 
revenue for eligible projects. The two eligible projects are on State Route 91 (SR-91): 
Project I, between State Route 57 (SR-57) and State Route 55 (SR-55), and 
Project J, between SR-55 and the Riverside County line. This approach 
continued with the review and approval of the updated Next 10 Plan on 
November 13, 2017, and last year on September 10, 2018.  
 
Staff continues to incorporate strategies to ensure the complete M2 program of 
projects can be delivered through tight project scope management, including 
refinements as appropriate, adjusting schedules, and aggressively seeking 
external revenue. 
 
Discussion 
 
On October 28, 2019, the Board received the 2019 M2 sales tax revenue 
forecast of $13.4 billion. This increase from $13.1 billion to $13.4 billion 
represents a $300 million gross increase from what was assumed in the  
2018 Next 10 Plan. The increase is driven by the growing economy and the 
implementation of the Wayfair decision in California. The Wayfair-related 
legislation enabled the collection of sales tax for out-of-state transactions.  As a 
result of the decision, increased sales tax receipts were incorporated in the  
short-term forecast provided by MuniServices, LLC, which increased the overall 
long-term forecast. This increase in the M2 sales tax forecast is the first increase 
in sales tax revenue projections since 2014. 
 
In general, revenues fluctuate over time. The M2 expenditure plan includes 
programmatic items with specific percentages, such as 32 percent for streets 
and roads, which adjusts according to available revenues. However, the freeway 
portion defines specific projects which cannot be easily adjusted according to 
revenue shifts.   



Measure M2 2019 Update:  Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 3 
 

 

 

Next 10 Plan Cash Flow Update 
 
For the 2019 Next 10 Plan review and update, forecasted revenues and costs 
through 2041 were tested. This effort was conducted to ensure the complete  
M2 Program could be delivered consistent with commitments provided to the 
voters as part of the M2 approval in November 2006. The Next 10 Plan cash flow 
incorporates the revised revenue forecast of $13.4 billion, with prior 
commitments in programmed local, state, and federal external revenues. 
Revenues and expenses are merged into a cash flow model. Bond assumptions 
are also included to support the project delivery schedules in the 
freeway program.  In this update, the increase in the revenue forecast and 
refined project costs from completing higher level engineering studies has 
resulted in reducing bond assumptions to only one planned issuance in 2023, 
thereby reducing bond interest costs compared to the 2018 plan.  
 
While additional debt is not required to deliver the Next 10 Plan deliverables, in 
the event the construction market was to change, additional bonding capacity is 

erage ratios are well above the allowable amount of 
1.3x. The minimum forecasted debt coverage ratio during this period is 5.6x, 
which provides substantial bonding capacity. This offers significant financial 
protection against unforeseen economic changes related to project delivery.  
The updated 2019 Next 10 Plan is included as Attachment A. An M2 cash flow 
summary chart showing a positive ending balance in all years is included as 
Attachment B, demonstrating that the full program (through 2041) is deliverable. 
Specific Next 10 Plan elements are described in the following sections. 
 
Freeway Program 
 
As a result of the increase in the forecasted sales tax and interest revenue, the 
freeway program is anticipated to receive an additional $183.6 million in net 
revenue through 2041. In addition, each project in the freeway program was 
reviewed and cost estimates updated. With the majority of projects now either 
nearing completion of the environmental phase or in design, project cost 
estimates have a higher level of engineering and higher confidence. While some 
project costs increased, others decreased, which resulted in a net decrease of 
$142.2 million. With sales tax revenue up and freeway project costs down, this 
resulted in a net positive in the freeway program of $326.8 million. This allows 
for less reliance on bonding, reducing bond interest costs, and providing savings 
in the freeway program while at the same time continuing to expedite projects. 
As noted earlier, should the freeway program require additional revenue to 
support project expenditures, there is significant bonding capacity available.  
This results in a delivery plan (through 2041) that remains solvent. More detailed 
Next 10 Plan program assumptions for the freeway program can be found on 
page 103 of Attachment A. 



Measure M2 2019 Update:  Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 4 
 

 

 

There are two deliverables included in the Next 10 Plan related to the freeway 
program. Deliverable 1 includes a commitment of 12 designated projects to be 
prioritized and funded through construction which, in addition to the nine prior 
completed projects, total approximately $3.5 billion.  
 
Deliverable 2 includes a commitment to environmentally clear all remaining  
M2 freeway projects making them shelf-ready for early advancement as M2 projects 
become defined and as external funding becomes available. The deliverable 
includes $715 million in M2 capacity to designate and advance additional 
projects. In total, with Deliverable 1, the Next 10 Plan commits $4.3 billion in 
freeway program improvements through construction. Of the nine remaining  
M2 projects, six are either environmentally cleared or wrapping up environmental 
clearance. This 2019 Next 10 Plan update designates five of the nine remaining 
projects for advancement through construction. The remaining four projects 
have been identified as needing additional time or study prior to being advanced. 
See below tables for the breakdown. 

I-605 - Interstate 605 / SR-57  State Route 57 / NB  Northbound / I-5  Interstate 5 / I-405  Interstate 405 /  
SR-55  State Route 55 

 
The remaining four projects (projects 6 through 9 below) listed below have specific 
reasons related to the application of the Guiding Principles that require additional 
time prior to advancement. An explanation is provided in Attachment C. 

SR-241 - State Route 241 / I-15  Interstate 15 

  

 
1 These cost estimates are preliminary and will be updated once the project alternative is selected 
at the completion of environmental clearance.  
2 The total will be revised once the three remaining projects (Project D, G, and J) complete 
environmental clearance and have a selected project alternative. 

 
Environmental Projects Advanced to Construction 

Construction 
Complete 

Cost 

1. Project M I-605 Katella Avenue Interchange 2025 $ 28.6 
2. Project G SR-57 NB Orangewood Avenue to Katella Avenue 2026 $67.8 
3. Project B I-5 between I-405 and Yale Avenue 2028 $234.4 
4. Project B I-5 between Yale Avenue and SR-55 2028 $204.3 
5. Project F SR-55 between I-5 and SR-91 2028 $122.4 

Deliverable 2 Total $657.5 

Environmental  
Cleared/ Shelf-

Ready 
Cost 

6. Project L I-405 between I-5 and SR-55 2018 $238.8 
7. Project D I-5 El Toro Road Interchange 2020 $112.31 
8. Project G SR-57 NB Lambert Road to County Line 2026 $167.51 
9. Project J SR-91 between SR-241 and I-15 2026 $292.51 

Remaining M2 Freeway Projects Total $811.12  



Measure M2 2019 Update:  Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 5 
 

 

 

Included in the freeway program is the Environmental Mitigation Program.  
The Next 10 Plan includes a deliverable to ensure the ongoing preservation of 
purchased open space to address the environmental impacts of freeway projects 
and streamline project approvals.  
 
Streets and Roads Program 
 
The M2 expenditure plan includes programmatic items which adjust according 
to available revenues and are cash flowed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The 
funding assumptions in the streets and roads mode assume $4.8 billion in total 
revenue, with costs for the same period totaling $4.8 billion. The Streets and 
Roads Program relies on the total receipt of $600 million in external revenues 
(state, federal, and local), primarily for the OC Bridges grade separation projects. 
More detailed Next 10 Plan program assumptions can be found on page 106 of 
Attachment A.  
 
The Next 10 Plan includes a commitment to allocate up to $1 billion, with up to 
$400 million in competitive funding and $600 million in flexible funding to local 
jurisdictions for streets and roads improvements. This deliverable also included 
the completion of all seven grade separation projects as part of the OC Bridges 
program which was completed in 2018. The cash flow assumes up to $40 million 
in annual calls for road improvement projects and for synchronization of signals.   
 
Transit Program 
 
The M2 expenditure plan includes programmatic items which adjust (except for 

according to available revenues.  
Despite not adjusting to available revenues due to changes in ridership and an 
early amendment providing additional funding, the fare stabilization program 
remains solvent. The remaining transit mode programs are cash flowed on a 
pay-as-you-go basis. The transit program assumes $3.8 billion in total revenue, 
with costs for the same period totaling $3.8 billion. Funding for the transit mode 
assumes the total receipt of $527.2 million in local, state, and federal revenues. 
This number is inclusive of $148.96 million in Federal New Starts and $25.52 million 
in State Cap-and-Trade revenues to partially fund the OC Streetcar project.  
More detailed Next 10 Plan program assumptions can be found on page 106 of 
Attachment A.  
 
The Next 10 Plan is slated to provide up to $1 billion in five deliverables for transit 
improvements, including support for Metrolink service expansion, implementation 
of the OC Streetcar, expanded mobility for seniors and persons with disabilities, 
funding for community circulators, and enhanced passenger amenities for 

.    
 



Measure M2 2019 Update:  Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 6 
 

 

 

Environmental Cleanup Program 
 
The increase in forecasted revenue, provides an additional $6.5 million for the 
Environmental Clean Up Program (ECP), which assumes $268 million in total 
revenue, with costs for the same period totaling $267 million. The ECP is 
programmatic, which adjusts to available revenues and is cash flowed on a  
pay-as-you-go basis. More detailed Next 10 Plan program assumptions can be 
found on page 106 of Attachment A. The Next 10 Plan commits to $40 million in 
environmental cleanup projects intended to prevent the flow of trash and debris 
into waterways. 
 
With careful management of the projects and use of financial resources, the full 
scope of the M2 Program is on track to be delivered as promised.  
 
Key Financial Risks and Actions to Protect M2 Delivery 
 
The Next 10 Plan deliverables for projects and programs are not without risks. 
While the M2 Program continues to demonstrate financial stability and the ability 
to deliver the complete M2 plan of projects and programs, OCTA remains 
cognizant of risks. These include financial, construction market, resource,  
and regulatory risks. A table of risks is included on pages 6 through 7 of  
Attachment A, with two of the key risks highlighted below.  
 
 Sales Tax Revenues  OCTA has been challenged with actuals not 

aligning with revenue forecasts and annual forecast updates coming in 

economists and tax experts resulted in a higher forecast than the previous 
year. Although this is very positive, there are no assurances and, hence, 
the revenue outlook continues to be a risk item to watch.  

 
 Potential for Cost Increases Impacting Freeway Delivery  

Cost Pressure Index, reported by 
consultants, identified a potential that OCTA could experience a cost 
increase of between six to 11 percent during the 2018 though 2020 time 
period of construction activity. The most recent update suggests a 
tempering and reflects a two to six percent potential increase looking 
forward between 2020 and 2022. Other influences, such as tariffs which 
are not quantifiable, can change the outcomes. 

 

monitors and adjusts project cost escalation assumptions according to market 
trends. The Project Controls Department s cost estimating process uses historical 
information, as well as current trends in the market, and follows a consistent and 
defined process. Looki



Measure M2 2019 Update:  Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 7 
 

 

 

included a three percent escalation which, on average during this timeframe, 
provided the appropriate escalation to deliver projects successfully. For this  
Next 10 Plan update, M2 project costs incorporate a 3.5 percent escalation factor 
for construction, as well as reasonable contingency based on project type and 
complexity to protect against construction market pressures. 
 
Updated revenue assumptions and commitments, along with revised bonding 
assumptions, result in a delivery plan that remains solvent. A balanced plan not 
only allows OCTA to secure favorable bond ratings when financing, but also 
allows OCTA to weather reasonable changes to cost or revenues. With a solvent 
cash flow, the prior Next 10 Plan deliverables remain as adopted and include the 
designation of five additional freeway projects for advancement through 
construction.  The updated deliverables are included along with a progress report 
as Attachment D.   
 
  



Measure M2 2019 Update:  Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 8 
 

 

 

Summary 
 
In response to the latest revenue forecast, staff reviewed the Next 10 Plan and 
updated the revenues, bonding assumptions, project costs, and schedules into 
the M2 cash flow. The result of the review and update demonstrates a delivery 
plan that remains solvent. The 2019 updated Next 10 Plan is presented for Board 
review and approval. 
 
Attachments 
 
A. Measure M2 Role, Sustainable Communities Strategy 
B. 2019 Update, Next 10 Delivery Plan, 2017-2026, Draft  
C. 2019 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan, M2 Program Cash Balance 
D. 2019 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan, Remaining Measure M2 Freeway 

Projects 
E. 2019 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan, Progress Report on Deliverables 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 

Tamara Warren  Kia Mortazavi 
Manager, Program Management Office 
(714) 560-5590 

Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 

 



1 
 

Measure M2 Role  
Sustainable Communities Strategy 

 
 
Measure M2 (M2) is a balanced plan that not only delivers capital improvements but 
supports and enhances the ability of the Orange County Transportation Authority to meet 
the regional Sustainable Communities Strategy in Orange County. M2 projects and 
programs are part of a larger suite of transportation improvements included in the  
30-year M2 Plan. More than 50 percent of M2 funds are intended to fulfill transit, system 
optimization, enhanced environmental elements, and infrastructure preservation goals.  
In addition, the funding eligibility criteria encourages local agencies to consider 
accommodations for transit and non-motorized transportation. 
 
The M2 Program was publicly reviewed through a Program Environmental Impact Report 
prior to voters approving the ballot measure in November 2006. Since 2008, the  
M2 Program has been included in the regional transportation plans, Sustainable 
Communities Strategies, and the associated program environmental impact reports 
prepared by the Southern California Association of Governments .  
 
In addition to funding freeway improvements, the M2 Program dedicates funding for many 
transit and local street improvement projects. These include improvements, such as: 
  
 New transit connections between major Orange County activity areas that reduce 

the need for short automobile trips;  
 Enhanced convenience and reliability for bus services and Metrolink commuter rail 

to encourage transit as a dependable commute option; 
 Local funding for development of multimodal corridors and roadway preservation 

that improves the quality of mobility for all users; and, 
 Signal synchronization on 750 miles of roadways throughout Orange County to 

reduce congestion and tailpipe emissions. 
 
The Freeway Environmental Mitigation Program has preserved 1,300 acres of wild lands 
that will be converted to the Preserves to enhance connectivity and wildlife movement 
between existing conservation areas - such as the Cleveland National Forest, the  
Chino Hills State Park, and the Irvine Ranch Conservancy lands - and to coastal areas. 
Furthermore, the program also provides critical habitat for endangered or listed species. 
Additionally, since M2 inception the Environmental Cleanup Program has funded nearly 
200 projects, totaling over $51.8 million to treat storm water runoff, and help keep 
waterways and beaches clean in Orange County. The aforementioned transit, local 
streets, and environmental programs collectively contribute to and enhance the quality of 
life, as well as provide a sustainable future, and an efficient transportation system that 
benefits the region.  
 
  

ATTACHMENT A 



2 
 

Measure M2 Role 
Sustainable Communities Strategy 

 
 
Brief summaries of the specific programs are listed below.  
 

 Projects A through N  Freeway improvements and Freeway Service Patrol to 
provide emission reductions through congestion relief.  

 Project O and Project P  Signal synchronization and street improvements that 
provide emission reductions through congestion relief and allow for bike and 
pedestrian project elements as appropriate. 

 Project Q  Local funding for city-selected transportation projects that provides for 
preservation of the streets and roads system and flexibility to accommodate bike, 
pedestrian, water quality, and transit enhancements as eligible expenditures. 

 Project R  Expanded Metrolink train capacity including improvements to stations 
and parking to improve transit reliability and convenience and reduce reliance on 
highways while also supporting potential transit-oriented development. 

 Project S  Transit extensions to improve access between Metrolink stations and 
residential/employment centers, and provide an alternative to driving. 

 Project T  Station improvements to connect to planned future high-speed rail 
services. 

 Project U  Sustain mobility choices for seniors and persons with disabilities and 
provides an alternative to driving. 

 Project V  Community-based circulators to complement regional transit services 
with local communities and provides an alternative to driving. 

 Project W  Transit stop improvements to support transfers between major bus 
lines, and support the implementation of mobile ticketing to ensure ease of fare 
purchase and convenience for bus passengers. 

 Project X  Water quality improvement programs/projects to meet federal Clean 
Water Act standards for urban runoff, and augment required mitigations. 

 Freeway Mitigation Program  Natural resource protection strategy to provide for 
more comprehensive mitigation of environmental impacts from M2 freeway 
improvements. 

 























































 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 6, 2020 
 
 
To: Regional Planning and Highways Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Measure M2 Performance Assessment Report Update 
 
 
Overview 
 
Measure M2 includes a requirement for a performance assessment to be 
conducted every three years to evaluate the efficiency, effectiveness, economy, 
and program results of the Orange County Transportation Authority in delivering 
Measure M2. The fourth of these performance assessments, covering the period 
of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018, was completed and presented to the 
Board of Directors on March 11, 2019. This report is the final update on the 
action items from the recommendations for enhancements identified in the 
performance assessment.  
 
Recommendation  
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
On November 7, 2006, the voters of Orange County approved the  
Measure M2 (M2) Transportation Investment Plan (Plan) with a 69.7 percent 
vote. The Plan provides a revenue stream, from April 1, 2011 through  
March 31, 2041, to fund a broad range of transportation improvements.  
The M2 Ordinance specifies specific safeguards and requirements that are to be 
followed.    
 

once every three years to evaluate the efficiency, effectiveness, economy, and 
program results of the Authority in satisfying the provisions and requirements of 
the investment summary of the Plan, the Plan, and the ordinance.   
 
The fourth triennial performance assessment, covering the time period of  
July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018, was presented to the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) Board of Directors (Board) on March 11, 2019, 
as well as to the Taxpayers Oversight Committee (TOC) on April 9, 2019.  
 
 



Measure M2 Performance Assessment Report Update Page 2 
 

 

 

The performance assessment included eight recommendations for 
enhancements, and staff provided the Board with an action plan in response to 
the recommendations, with a commitment to report implementation progress to 
the Board in the M2 quarterly reports.  
 
Discussion 
 
The key objectives of the fourth assessment were as follows: to evaluate the 
status of findings from the prior M2 performance assessment and the 
effectiveness of changes implemented, assess the performance of OCTA on the 
efficient delivery of M2 projects and programs, and identify and evaluate any 
potential barriers to success, including opportunities for process improvements.   
In addition to reviewing the prior assessment findings and OCTA-related actions, 
five main areas of focus were identified for the assessment:  
 

 Project delivery 
 Program management/responsiveness  
 Compliance  
 Fiscal responsibility  
 Transparency and accountability  

 
Overall, the fiscal year (FY) 2015-16 thorough FY 2017-18 assessment 
commended 
delivery of the M2 Program.  In general, the assessment report found that OCTA 
is either where it should be or has accomplished more than what would be 
assumed in the seven-year period across all M2 program areas. 
 
As part of the report, there were eight recommendations for enhancements 
related to the execution of the elements outlined in the scope of work. There 
were no major recommendations that suggested there should be a change in the 

 
 
Below are the key areas the recommendations focused on, along with a 
summary of the action that staff has implemented.  
 
 To continue to increase awareness of M2, staff has restructured the  

M website to highlight the balanced Plan of multi-modal transportation 
improvements. In addition, a section was added to the M website that 
provides progress updates towards the six key M2 Ordinance goals of 
relieving congestion, fixing potholes and resurfacing streets, reducing air 
and water pollution, synchronizing traffic lights, expanding Metrolink, and 
providing transit at reduced rates to seniors and persons with disabilities.  

  



Measure M2 Performance Assessment Report Update Page 3 
 

 

 

 To enhance quantitatively tracking data in all programs, staff collaborated 
to create a methodology that is currently being implemented as 
appropriate to capture project outputs and accomplishments against the 
Plan.  
 

 The assessment also recommended that a stronger link between capital 
project selection and implementation be formally memorialized.  
The updated 2019 Next 10 Delivery Plan referenced the guiding principles 
when recommending advancement of select projects from the 
environmental phase into design and construction.  
 

 To enhance transparency with the public, staff has incorporated more M2 
information in social media to bring more awareness to the program and 
added short biographies for the TOC members to highlight experience 
and expertise of those providing oversight.  

 
A table outlining the overall M2 Performance Assessment findings, as well as 
the completed action, can be found in Attachment A.  
 
Summary 
 
The fourth M2 Performance Assessment, as required by Ordinance No. 3,  
was completed and presented to the Board on March 11, 2019.  
Eight recommendations for enhancements were made to which staff responded 
and developed an action plan. Since then, all eight findings have been 
addressed. A summary of all findings and action items is included in  
Attachment A.  
 
Attachment 
 
A. July 2015  June 2018 M2 Performance Assessment, Recommendations 

and Action Plan  
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

  
 
 
 
Approved by: 

 
Tamara Warren  Kia Mortazavi 
Manager, Program Management Office  
(714) 560-5590 

 Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 

 



 
 

July 2015 - June 2018 M2 Performance Assessment 
Recommendations and Action Plan 

ATTACHMENT A 

Consultant Recommendation OCTA Action 
Chapter 1: Program Goals Have Been Met Thus Far 
1. Consider identifying measures to capture progress 

towards the six key M2 Ordinance goals and report on 
how results achieved correlate to those goals - relieving 
congestion, fixing potholes and resurfacing streets, 
reducing air and water pollution, synchronizing traffic 
lights, expanding Metrolink and providing transit at 
reduced rates to seniors/persons with disabilities.   

Complete - 
progress towards delivery of individual projects and 
programs, staff has incorporated the six key M2 
Ordinance goals on the OC Go website and will 
update progress on the goals throughout the life of 
M2. 

Chapter 2: OCTA Demonstrated Strong Program Management 
2. Implement in-progress plans to update cyber security 

training policy and require annual training as well as 
establish a timeline for implementation. 

Complete - OCTA has updated the security training 
policy and includes mandatory training requirements.  

3. Regularly monitor the training status of all employees to 
ensure cybersecurity training is complete within the 
required timeframe including defining specific roles and 
responsibilities, timelines and frequency of monitoring, 
verification methods, and documentation of status. 

Complete - Information Systems is responsible for 
updating the content of the cybersecurity training 
annually. In coordination with Learning and 
Development, annual mandatory cybersecurity 
training is required of all staff and tied to annual 
performance reviews and merit increases.   

Chapter 3: While Still Early in the M2 Life Cycle, Substantial Progress was Made Across All Program 
Areas 
4 Create a methodology to gather quantitative 

accomplishment data and track project 
accomplishments against Transportation Investment 
Plan (Plan) anticipated goals. 

Complete - Staff created a methodology to capture 
project outputs and accomplishments against the 
Plan goals. 

5. Demonstrate a stronger link between capital project 
selection guiding principles and the actual 
implementation order for capital projects by formally 
memorializing discussions and decisions made. 

Complete - As part of the 2019 Next 10 Delivery Plan, 
staff memorialized the application of the guiding 
principles and decisions made for advancing 
projects. 

Chapter 4: OCTA Approaches Ensured Compliance with M2 Ordinance 
6. Include additional links, where appropriate, to underlying 

support documentation to validate compliance efforts in 
 

Complete - Staff has incorporated additional links to 
supporting documentation in the annual Ordinance 
Compliance Matrix as appropriate.  

Decreased Sales Tax Revenue  No Recommendation 
Chapter 6: OCTA was Transparent and Accountable to The Public  

7. 

Enhance awareness of the M2/OC Go Program, M2 
funded projects, and related M2 accomplishments on 
social media through posts on currently existing OCTA 
social media pages or through using separate social 
media dedicated to M2. 

Ongoing - In May 2019, OCTA ran a six-week social 
media campaign. Staff will incorporate more M2 
related information in social media to enhance 
awareness as appropriate.  

8. 
Add a short biography on the OCTA website highlighting 

transparency of those providing oversight. 

Complete - Staff has incorporated short biographies 
on the OCTA website.  

 

Acronyms 
M2  Measure M2 
OCTA  Orange County Transportation Authority 
TOC  Taxpayers Oversight Committee 







 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
 
 
 
October 10, 2019 
 
 
To: Transit Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: 2020 Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 

Guidelines and Call for Projects 
 
 
Overview 
 
Measure M2 establishes a competitive program through Project V to fund local 
transit services, which complement regional transit. Based upon both outreach 
and financial assessments conducted earlier this year, there is sufficient interest 
and financial capacity to justify the initiation of a fourth Project V call for projects. 
Updated Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Guidelines  
(Project V) are proposed for approval, as well as the authorization to issue a 
fourth Project V call for projects. 
 
Recommendations  
 
A. Approve revisions to the Comprehensive Transportation Funding 

Programs Guidelines for the Project V Community-Based Transit 
Circulators Program. 

 
B. Authorize staff to issue the 2020 Measure M2 Project V Community-Based 

Transit Circulators call for projects. 
 

Background 
 
Project V is a competitive program under Measure M (M2), which provides 
funding to develop and implement local transit services. Based upon current 
forecasts, total estimated revenues for Project V (through 2041) are estimated to 
be approximately $248 million. To date, the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) has awarded approximately $42 million in Project V services. 
After deducting project cancellations, there remains approximately $30 million in 
total funding allocations that have been committed to Project V to date.   
 
  



2020 Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Guidelines and Call for Projects 

Page 2 
 

 

 

In early 2019, the OCTA Board of Directors (Board) requested that staff evaluate 
whether there was sufficient demand and financial capacity to justify a fourth 
Project V call for projects (call).   
 
Accordingly, OCTA conducted a financial assessment of the Project V Program 
and concluded that with existing commitments, an assumed continuation 
allowance for existing successful services, and assumptions with respect to the 
associated paratransit service costs, that the program could accommodate an 
approximately $9 million call for 2020. This finding and conclusions from outreach 

were presented to the Board in August. At that meeting, the Board directed staff 
to return in the fall with revised Comprehensive Transportation Funding  
Programs (CTFP) Guidelines for Project V in order to support efforts to initiate a 
fourth call.   
 
Since that time, OCTA staff met and worked with local agencies to develop 
proposed CTFP Guidelines revisions. These proposed revisions were designed 
based upon lessons learned from previous calls in order to facilitate 
implementation of 2020 call objectives. Applicable local agency comments were 
reviewed, considered, and incorporated as appropriate, and the following 
discussion provides a summary of key proposed changes and next steps for 
Board consideration.   
 
Discussion 
 
Key proposed CTFP Project V changes include the following.   
 
 Specified 2020 call specific objectives to include support for: 

1. Continuing funding of existing successful services (i.e., services 
with ridership clearly being maintained at ten boardings per revenue 
vehicle hour, for years three and beyond in previously awarded 
grants). 

2. New special event and/or shuttle services. 
3. Expanding new options through shared ride-hailing services.  
4. Allowing for planning requests in order to keep the program fresh 

and evolving.   
 

 Revised application scoring criteria to support 2020 call objectives. 
 
 OCTA does not have the capacity to operate Project V services on behalf 

of local agencies.   
 



2020 Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Guidelines and Call for Projects 

Page 3 
 

 

 

 Clarified that agencies may be awarded (from all eligible categories) no 
more than $550,000 for a period of up to seven years per project.   

 Funding available starting in fiscal year 2020-21. 
 
 Clarified the types of eligible capital, and operations and  

maintenance (O&M) expenditures that would be allowed, and also 
specified the criteria under which continuation/expansion of existing 
services would be considered. 

 
 Specified that the $9 per boarding, or 90 percent

reimbursement process would also be applicable for shared ride-hailing 
services on a $9 per user basis. 

 
 Included new useful-life language with respect to disposition of capital 

assets upon cancellation and/or removal. 
 
 Allowed for a separate initial marketing cost category that would not be 

subject to the $9 per boarding/user reimbursement limitation.  
 

 Specified M2 signage and branding requirements.  
 
 Clarified that provision of Americans with Disabilities Act comparable 

services for non-fixed-route service applications must be provided by the 
applicant and documented in the . 

 
 Required that application financial plans be based upon estimates 

provided by potential vendors.  
 
 Clarified how the $9 per boarding/user, or 90 percent of net O&M costs, 

whichever is lower  reimbursement process would work for local 
agencies.  

 
For a more detailed summary of proposed changes, see Attachment A, which 
provides a table of proposed changes, as well as Attachment B, which provides 
a marked-up version of all proposed CTFP Guidelines changes.   
 
Next Steps 
 
Upon Board approval, staff will send out letters and e-blast announcements 
notifying local 
Applications would be due to OCTA by December 12, 2019, and based upon 
project selection criteria specified in the CTFP Guidelines, projects will be 



2020 Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Guidelines and Call for Projects 

Page 4 
 

 

 

prioritized for Board consideration in spring 2020.  Project funds, if ultimately 
awarded by the Board, would become available to local agencies for services 
starting on July 1, 2020. Approved and active services will be monitored quarterly, 
and ridership reporting will be provided to the Board on a semi-annual basis.  
 
Summary 
 
Based upon Board direction, staff has completed a financial assessment of the 
M2 Project V Program, as well as outreach efforts, to determine if there is 
sufficient justification to warrant a fourth Project V call. Based upon these 
activities, a fourth Project V call is recommended in an amount not to exceed  
$9 million.  Approval of proposed changes to the Project V CTFP Guidelines is 
also recommended.   
 
Attachments 
 
A. 2020 Project V Guidelines and Call for Projects 
B. Draft Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs, Guidelines 

Excerpt, Proposed Revisions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 
 
Alfonso Hernandez 
Senior Transportation Funding 
Analyst 
(714) 560-5669 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved by: 

 
Kia Mortazavi 
Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 

 



20
2

0 
C

T
F

P
 G

u
id

el
in

e
s

 
 C

h
a

p
te

r 
6

 (
P

ro
je

c
t 

V
) 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
L

is
t 

# 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 
P

ag
e

 N
o

. 
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 C
h

a
n

g
e 

1
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

6-
1 

A
d

d
ed

 la
n

g
ua

ge
 to

 c
la

ri
fy

 t
ha

t 
el

ig
ib

le
 a

p
p

lic
an

ts
 a

re
 C

T
F

P
 e

lig
ib

le
 lo

ca
l a

ge
n

ci
e

s 
a

n
d 

to
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s.
 

2 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
6-

1 
A

d
d

e
d:

  
2

02
0

 C
a

ll 
fo

r 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 (
c

al
l)

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

1
) 

T
o

 c
o

n
tin

u
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y 
a

w
a

rd
ed

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

a
t 

a
re

 e
xp

iri
n

g
. 

2
) 

T
o

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

or
t 

ne
w

 s
p

e
ci

al
 e

ve
n

t o
r 

se
a

so
n

a
l s

h
u

ttl
e

 s
e

rv
ic

es
. 

3
) 

T
o

 e
xp

an
d

 s
h

ar
e

d
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

pt
io

n
s 

th
ro

u
gh

 p
ro

m
o

tin
g 

rid
e

-h
ai

lin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
s 

by
 

p
ro

vi
di

n
g

 fu
n

di
n

g
 f

or
 tr

an
si

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 s

tu
di

e
s.

 
3 

2
02

0
 C

a
ll 

 
6-

2 
U

p
d

at
ed

 th
e

 to
ta

l e
st

im
a

te
d 

a
m

ou
n

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
2

0
20

 c
a

ll 
($

9
M

) 
a

n
d

 a
d

d
ed

 ti
m

e
lin

e
 f

or
 t

he
 2

02
0

 c
a

ll.
  

4
 

R
e

so
lu

tio
n

s 
6-

3 
Id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e

 d
ue

 d
a

te
s 

fo
r 

d
ra

ft 
a

nd
 f

in
a

l a
do

p
te

d
 r

es
o

lu
tio

n
s.

 
A

ls
o 

cl
a

ri
fie

d
 th

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 la
n

gu
a

ge
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 f
or

 r
es

o
lu

tio
n

s/
 

5
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

tio
n

 
C

a
te

g
o

ri
es

: 
P

la
n

ni
n

g
 fo

r 
ne

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

6
-3

 
M

a
d

e
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
or

 2
02

0
 c

a
ll 

a
n

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

m
ax

im
um

 a
m

o
un

t 
of

 P
ro

je
ct

 V
 

fu
nd

in
g

 f
ro

m
 $

50
k 

to
 $

60
k 

fo
r 

pl
an

n
in

g
 f

or
 n

ew
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

6
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

tio
n

 
C

a
te

g
o

ri
es

: 
C

a
pi

ta
l 

6
-3

 a
n

d
 6

-4
 

C
la

ri
fie

d
 e

lig
ib

le
 c

a
p

ita
l i

te
m

s 
fo

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 V

. 
A

ls
o

, 
 

7
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

tio
n

 
C

a
te

g
o

ri
es

: 
In

iti
a

l/S
ta

rt
-u

p 
M

a
rk

e
tin

g
 

C
o

st
s 

6
-4

 
A

d
d

e
d:

 I
ni

tia
l/s

ta
rt

-u
p

 m
ar

ke
tin

g
 c

o
st

s 
to

 e
st

a
b

lis
h

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
iz

e
 n

e
w

 a
n

d
/o

r 
ex

p
a

nd
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ca

p
p

ed
 a

t $
5

0,
0

00
 (

to
ta

l)
 N

o
te

: I
n

iti
a

l/S
ta

rt
-u

p 
M

ar
ki

ng
 c

o
st

s 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
su

b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

M
a

in
te

n
a

nc
e

 b
o

a
rd

in
g

 s
u

bs
id

y 
lim

ita
tio

n
s 

o
ut

lin
ed

 b
e

lo
w

. 
H

o
w

ev
er

, 
it 

w
ou

ld
 s

til
l r

eq
u

ire
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 

lo
ca

l m
a

tc
h

 o
f 

te
n

 p
er

ce
n

t 
(1

0
%

).
 

8
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

tio
n

 
C

a
te

g
o

ri
es

: 
O

p
e

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

M
ai

n
te

n
a

nc
e

 

6
-4

 a
n

d
 6

-5
 

C
la

ri
fie

d
 a

nd
 m

ad
e

 c
o

rr
ec

tio
ns

 to
 c

o
nt

en
t f

o
r 

th
is

 s
e

ct
io

n.
 

 A
ls

o,
 a

d
de

d
 s

h
a

re
d

 r
id

e
-h

a
ili

n
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

pr
o

je
ct

 c
a

te
g

or
y.

  
 

9 
P

ro
je

ct
 P

ar
tic

ip
a

tio
n

 
C

a
te

g
o

ri
es

 
6-

5 
In

cr
e

as
e

d
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

e
ri

od
 f

ro
m

 f
iv

e
 to

 s
e

ve
n

 y
e

a
rs

. 
Id

en
tif

ie
d

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
ta

rt
 d

a
te

 a
s 

F
Y

 2
0

2
0

-2
1

. 
A

d
d

e
d 

la
n

gu
a

ge
 fo

r 
a

ge
n

ci
es

 p
ro

p
os

in
g 

sh
a

re
d

 r
id

e
-h

ai
lin

g
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 u

se
r 

lim
ita

tio
n

s.
 In

 
a

dd
iti

on
, 

ad
d

ed
 n

ot
e

 th
a

t 
so

m
e

 o
f t

h
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 h
a

s 
a

g
e 

re
st

ri
ct

io
ns

 fo
r 

sh
a

re
d 

ri
de

-h
ai

lin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
 

10
 

In
el

ig
ib

le
 C

at
e

g
or

ie
s 

6-
5 

A
d

d
ed

 t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 la

ng
ua

g
e

 to
 s

u
pp

la
n

t 
ex

is
tin

g
 tr

a
n

si
t s

e
rv

ic
e

s:
 

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 ju
st

ify
 r

e
g

io
na

l t
ra

n
si

t 
se

rv
ic

e
 is

 n
ot

 b
e

in
g 

su
p

p
la

nt
e

d
, l

o
ca

l a
ge

nc
ie

s 
m

us
t 

do
cu

m
e

nt
 a

nd
 

e
xp

la
in

 h
ow

 t
he

ir
 p

ro
p

os
a

l w
ill

 n
o

t c
o

m
pe

te
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

gi
o

n
al

 tr
an

si
t 

se
rv

ic
e,

 in
cl

u
di

n
g 

th
e

 p
ri

ce
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
 (

fa
re

),
 a

nd
 f

a
ci

lit
at

e
 c

o
nn

e
ct

io
n

s 
w

ith
 r

e
gi

o
na

l t
ra

n
si

t 
se

rv
ic

es
. F

in
a

l d
e

te
rm

in
a

tio
n

 o
f 

p
ro

p
os

a
l 

su
p

p
la

n
tin

g 
re

g
io

na
l t

ra
n

si
t s

e
rv

ic
e 

w
ill

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 b

y 
O

C
T

A
 s

ta
ff

. 

ATTACHMENT A



20
2

0 
C

T
F

P
 G

u
id

el
in

e
s

 
 C

h
a

p
te

r 
6

 (
P

ro
je

c
t 

V
) 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
L

is
t 

# 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 
P

ag
e

 N
o

. 
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 C
h

a
n

g
e 

 A
d

d
e

d:
 N

e
w

 e
xp

an
si

o
n 

o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

fix
ed

-r
o

ut
e

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
11

 
P

ro
je

ct
 R

eq
ui

re
m

e
nt

s 
 P

la
n

ni
n

g
 fo

r 
N

e
w

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

6-
6 

A
d

d
e

d:
 F

u
rt

h
er

, 
d

ra
ft

 r
ec

o
m

m
e

n
da

tio
n

s 
m

u
st

 b
e

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 t

o
 O

C
T

A
 tr

a
n

si
t p

la
nn

in
g

 s
ta

ff 
fo

r 
re

vi
e

w
 p

ri
or

 
to

 s
tu

dy
 c

om
p

le
tio

n
. 

12
 

P
ro

je
ct

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

 C
a

pi
ta

l 

6
-6

 
C

la
ri

fic
a

tio
n

 o
f 

d
is

p
o

sa
l o

f 
ca

p
ita

l a
ss

e
ts

 p
ur

ch
a

se
d

 w
ith

 P
ro

je
ct

 V
 fu

n
ds

 a
n

d 
th

ei
r 

us
e

fu
l l

ife
. 

13
 

P
ro

je
ct

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

 O
p

e
ra

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
M

ai
n

te
n

a
nc

e
 

6
-7

 a
n

d
 6

-8
 

C
la

ri
fie

d
 t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 f
o

r 
fix

ed
-r

o
ut

e
, c

om
m

un
ity

 s
h

u
tt

le
s 

a
nd

 s
ea

so
na

l s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

  
 A

d
d

e
d:

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
fo

r 
sh

ar
e

d 
ri

d
e

-h
ai

lin
g 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
d

et
e

rm
in

e
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 

se
rv

ic
e 

a
nd

 m
ay

 b
e 

ba
se

d
 o

n
 a

 c
os

t 
p

e
r 

u
se

r,
 c

o
st

 p
e

r 
m

ile
, o

r 
o

th
e

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

. 
 C

la
rif

ie
d

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
n

e
t 

o
pe

ra
tin

g 
co

st
s 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 r

eg
u

la
r 

a
n

d 
on

g
o

in
g

 m
a

rk
e

tin
g

 a
n

d
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

n
cl

ud
e

 
In

iti
a

l M
a

rk
et

in
g

 C
o

st
s 

to
 E

st
a

bl
is

h
 S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 

 d
ue

 t
o 

th
e 

va
rio

u
s 

ty
pe

s 
o

f s
e

rv
ic

es
 

p
ro

po
se

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
2

02
0

 C
a

ll.
 

 C
la

rif
ie

d
 la

n
g

ua
g

e 
re

g
ar

d
in

g
 A

D
A

 s
er

vi
ce

 f
or

 f
ix

e
d

-r
o

ut
e 

se
rv

ic
e

s.
 

 A
d

d
e

d:
 

F
or

 P
ro

je
ct

 V
 fu

n
de

d
 n

o
n

-f
ix

e
d

 r
ou

te
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 in
cl

u
d

in
g

 r
id

e
-h

ai
lin

g 
a

n
d 

a
n

y 
o

th
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 th

e
 lo

ca
l 

a
ge

nc
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
de

 A
D

A
 c

o
m

p
ar

a
bl

e
 s

e
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
e 

co
st

 fo
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

as
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 a
p

pl
ic

at
io

n.
 

1
4 

A
g

en
cy

 M
at

ch
 

R
e

qu
ire

m
e

nt
s 

6
-8

 
C

la
ri

fie
d

 a
ge

n
cy

 m
at

ch
 r

e
q

ui
re

m
e

n
t 

la
n

gu
a

ge
. 

1
5 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 R

e
q

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

6
-8

 a
n

d
 6

-9
 

C
la

ri
fie

d
 a

nd
 c

o
rr

ec
te

d
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 r
eq

ui
re

m
e

n
t l

a
ng

u
ag

e.
 

 C
la

rif
ie

d
 t

ha
t 

sp
e

ci
fic

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
m

us
t i

nc
lu

d
e

/n
o

t 
in

cl
ud

e
 t

he
 c

os
ts

 o
f 

A
D

A
 r

e
la

te
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

in
 th

e
ir 

p
ro

po
sa

ls
. 

 A
dd

e
d:

 
H

o
w

e
ve

r,
 fi

xe
d

-r
o

ut
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

w
o

u
ld

 n
ot

 in
cl

u
de

 t
he

 c
o

st
 o

f c
o

m
pl

em
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tr
a

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
e.

 F
o

r 
no

n
-f

ix
e

d
-r

o
u

te
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 in
cl

u
d

in
g

 r
id

e
-h

ai
lin

g 
se

rv
ic

e
s,

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
g

e
nc

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

de
 A

D
A

 c
o

m
p

ar
a

bl
e

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
a

n
d

 in
cl

u
de

 in
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

o
st

s 
in

 th
e

 a
p

pl
ic

a
tio

n
. 

16
 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 P

ro
ce

ss
 

6-
9 

an
d 

6
-1

0
 

C
la

rif
ie

d
 la

n
g

ua
g

e 
a

n
d

 a
d

de
d

 K
M

Z
 f

ile
s 

fo
r 

pr
o

po
se

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
17

 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 G
u

id
el

in
es

 
6-

10
 

C
la

rif
ie

d
 la

n
g

ua
g

e 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g
: 



20
2

0 
C

T
F

P
 G

u
id

el
in

e
s

 
 C

h
a

p
te

r 
6

 (
P

ro
je

c
t 

V
) 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
L

is
t 

# 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 
P

ag
e

 N
o

. 
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 C
h

a
n

g
e 

 F
in

an
ci

a
l D

e
ta

ils
 

 
In

iti
a

l/S
ta

rt
-u

p 
M

a
rk

et
in

g 
C

o
st

 t
o

 E
st

ab
lis

h 
S

er
vi

ce
 

 
C

o
st

 e
st

im
at

e
s 

b
e

 b
as

e
d

 u
p

on
 r

e
al

is
tic

 e
st

im
a

te
s 

p
ro

vi
de

d 
b

y 
po

te
n

tia
l v

e
n

do
rs

 
 

C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
tio

n 
o

f 
A

D
A

 c
o

st
s 

18
 

S
co

ri
ng

 C
rit

er
ia

 
6-

11
 

R
e

fe
re

n
ce

 c
ha

n
ge

s 
to

 s
co

rin
g 

cr
ite

ri
a

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

is
te

n
t w

ith
 2

0
2

0 
C

a
ll 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

. 
19

 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
ts

 
6-

12
 

C
la

ri
fie

d
 la

n
gu

a
ge

 
20

 
C

a
lc

u
la

tio
n 

of
 P

a
ym

en
t 

6-
1

2 
a

nd
 6

-1
3

 
U

p
d

at
ed

 s
am

pl
e 

p
ay

m
en

t 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n
 

21
 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
an

ce
lla

tio
n

 
6-

13
 

A
d

d
ed

: 
se

rv
ic

e
 li

fe
, 

w
he

re
 a

p
pl

ic
ab

le
. 

22
 

P
ro

je
ct

 V
 B

ra
n

d
in

g
 

6
-1

3 
a

n
d

 6
-1

4
 

A
d

d
ed

: 
P

ro
je

ct
s 

aw
a

rd
e

d 
P

ro
je

ct
 V

 f
u

nd
in

g 
a

re
 r

e
q

ui
re

d 
to

 p
la

ce
 M

2 
(O

C
G

O
) 

d
ec

a
ls

 in
 t

h
e 

ve
hi

cl
e

s 
us

e
d

 f
or

 
fix

e
d

-r
ou

te
, c

om
m

u
ni

ty
 s

h
ut

tle
s,

 a
n

d 
se

a
so

n
a

l s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

  
 F

or
 a

ll 
a

w
a

rd
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 lo

ca
l a

g
en

ci
es

 a
re

 r
e

qu
ir

ed
 t

o 
p

la
ce

 M
2 

lo
go

s 
on

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
a

n
d

 r
el

a
te

d
 

se
rv

ic
e 

p
u

b
lic

a
tio

n
 m

at
e

ria
ls

, i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
ns

. 
2

3 
E

xh
ib

it 
6

-1
 

P
oi

n
t B

re
ak

d
ow

n 
&

 
A

p
pl

ic
a

tio
n

 C
h

e
ck

lis
t 

6
-1

5 
a

n
d

 6
-1

6
 

R
e

vi
se

d
 a

n
d

 u
p

da
te

d
 s

co
rin

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

to
 a

lig
n

 w
ith

 t
he

 2
02

0
 c

al
l O

bj
e

ct
iv

e
s.

 

 A
c

ro
n

y
m

s
 

C
T

F
P

 
 C

o
m

pr
e

he
n

si
ve

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
tio

n
 F

u
nd

in
g 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

O
C

T
A

 
 O

ra
ng

e 
C

o
u

nt
y 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n 
A

u
th

or
ity

 
F

Y
 

 F
is

ca
l Y

e
ar

 
A

D
A

 
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
s 

w
ith

 D
is

a
b

ili
tie

s 
A

ct
  

M
2

 
 O

ra
n

ge
 C

o
u

n
ty

 M
ea

su
re

 2
 

O
C

G
O

 
 M

ea
su

re
 M

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B





 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 















 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

October 23, 2019 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 

From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer  
 
Subject: 2019 Measure M2 Sales Tax Forecast 
 
 
Overview 
  
The Orange County Transportation Authority contracts with MuniServices, LLC, 
and three universities to forecast Measure M2 taxable sales. MuniServices, LLC, 
and the three universities have provided updated forecasts, and staff has 
incorporated the new information into the annual update for the long-range 
forecast of Measure M2 taxable sales. 
 
Recommendation  
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
On March 28, 2016, the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) Board 
of Directors (Board) directed staff to forecast taxable sales in Orange County by 
utilizing MuniServices, LLC, forecasted taxable sales growth rates for the first 
five years of the forecast period, and average growth rates based on forecasted 
taxable sales from three universities; Chapman University, University of 
California, Los Angeles, and California State University, Fullerton, for the 
remaining years. In addition, OCTA received final tax receipts for fiscal  
year (FY) 2018-19 in September 2019.  
 
Discussion 
 
OCTA received updated taxable sales forecasts from MuniServices, LLC, 
(MuniServices) and the three universities for the 2019 Measure M2 (M2) sales 
tax revenue forecast. The MuniServices forecast includes five fiscal years from 
FY 2020 through FY 2024.  The average annual taxable sales growth rate over 
that period based on MuniServices forecast is 3.2 percent. The three-university 
average annual growth rate for the remaining years (FY 2025 through FY 2041) 
is 3.7 percent. The average annual growth rate over the entire forecast period is 



2019 Measure M2 Sales Tax Forecast Page 2 
 

 

 

3.6 percent. Based on the updated taxable sales forecasts, it is anticipated that 
total taxable sales available to support the M2 Program will be $13.4 billion over 
the 30-year period. The forecasted amount of sales tax of $13.4 billion 
represents a $0.3 billion (2.2 percent) increase in forecasted taxable sales 
compared to the FY 2018 forecast. 
 
The increase is based on a combination of factors, including  
California Department of Tax and Fee Administration implementation of  
AB 147 (Chapter 5, Statutes of 2019). AB 147 provides important direction in 
state law for the implementation of the United States South 
Dakota v. Wayfair, Inc. decision in California.  

the bill, businesses outside Orange County meeting this new definition must 
begin collecting M2 revenues on sales in Orange County. The bill requires that 
businesses register with the CDFTA by October 1, 2019. 
 
Summary 
 
OCTA has received updated taxable sales forecasts from MuniServices and the 
three universities.  Based on the implementation of the new sales tax collection 
law, it is anticipated that total taxable sales available for the M2 Program  
will be $13.4 billion. This represents a year-over-year increase of  
$0.3 billion (2.2 percent) in forecasted taxable sales when compared to last 

 
 
Attachment 
 
A. Orange County Transportation Authority M2 Sales Tax Revenue Forecast 

- 2019 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:     Approved by: 

     
Sam Kaur      Andrew Oftelie 
Department Manager,   Chief Financial Officer, 
Revenue and Grants Administration Finance and Administration  
(714) 560-5889           (714) 560-5649

 



O
ra

n
g

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

M
2

 S
al

es
 T

ax
 R

e
ve

n
u

e 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

- 
2

01
9

In
 N

om
in

a
l D

o
lla

rs

A
c

tu
al

 
G

ro
ss

 
G

ro
w

th
G

ro
ss

 
G

ro
w

th
G

ro
ss

 
G

ro
w

th
G

ro
ss

 
G

ro
w

th
G

ro
ss

 
B

le
n

d
e

d
G

ro
w

th
S

a
le

s 
T

ax
*

R
a

te
S

al
e

s 
T

a
x

R
a

te
S

al
es

 T
ax

R
at

e
S

al
es

 T
a

x
R

a
te

S
al

es
 T

a
x

 
G

ro
w

th
 R

at
e

20
11

**
6.

50
%

61
,7

56
,8

68
   

  
   

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

61
,7

56
,8

6
8

   
  

   
  

  
  

-
  

   
   

  
 

61
,7

5
6,

8
68

  
   

   
  

  
  

-
  

   
   

  
61

,7
5

6,
8

6
8

   
  

  
   

  
  

-
   

  
  

   
 

61
,7

5
6,

86
8

  
   

   
  

  
  

-
   

  
  

   
  

   
   

  
 

20
12

6.
20

%
25

0,
8

9
2,

9
31

   
  

   
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

25
0

,8
92

,9
3

1
   

  
   

  
  

-
  

   
   

  
 

25
0,

89
2,

9
31

  
   

   
  

  
-

  
   

   
  

25
0,

89
2,

93
1

   
  

  
   

  
-

   
  

  
   

 
25

0
,8

9
2,

93
1

  
   

   
  

  
-

   
  

  
   

  
   

   
  

 
20

13
6.

17
%

26
6,

3
8

4,
0

76
   

  
   

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
26

6
,3

84
,0

7
6

   
  

   
  

  
-

  
   

   
  

 
26

6,
38

4,
0

76
  

   
   

  
  

-
  

   
   

  
26

6,
38

4,
07

6
   

  
  

   
  

-
   

  
  

   
 

26
6

,3
8

4,
07

6
  

   
   

  
  

-
   

  
  

   
  

   
   

  
 

20
14

4.
96

%
27

9,
5

9
9,

9
46

   
  

   
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

27
9

,5
99

,9
4

6
   

  
   

  
  

-
  

   
   

  
 

27
9,

59
9,

9
46

  
   

   
  

  
-

  
   

   
  

27
9,

59
9,

94
6

   
  

  
   

  
-

   
  

  
   

 
27

9
,5

9
9,

94
6

  
   

   
  

  
-

   
  

  
   

  
   

   
  

 
20

15
4.

30
%

29
1,

6
1

5,
6

75
   

  
   

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
29

1
,6

15
,6

7
5

   
  

   
  

  
-

  
   

   
  

 
29

1,
61

5,
6

75
  

   
   

  
  

-
  

   
   

  
29

1,
61

5,
67

5
   

  
  

   
  

-
   

  
  

   
 

29
1

,6
1

5,
67

5
  

   
   

  
  

-
   

  
  

   
  

   
   

  
 

20
16

3.
20

%
30

0,
9

4
4,

5
23

   
  

   
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

30
0

,9
44

,5
2

3
   

  
   

  
  

-
  

   
   

  
 

30
0,

94
4,

5
23

  
   

   
  

  
-

  
   

   
  

30
0,

94
4,

52
3

   
  

  
   

  
-

   
  

  
   

 
30

0
,9

4
4,

52
3

  
   

   
  

  
-

   
  

  
   

  
   

   
  

 
20

17
2.

60
%

30
8,

7
6

8,
6

64
   

  
   

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
30

8
,7

68
,6

6
4

   
  

   
  

  
-

  
   

   
  

 
30

8,
76

8,
6

64
  

   
   

  
  

-
  

   
   

  
30

8,
76

8,
66

4
   

  
  

   
  

-
   

  
  

   
 

30
8

,7
6

8,
66

4
  

   
   

  
  

-
   

  
  

   
  

   
   

  
 

20
18

4.
12

%
32

1,
4

8
0,

5
29

   
  

   
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

32
1

,4
80

,5
2

9
   

  
   

  
  

-
  

   
   

  
 

32
1,

48
0,

5
29

  
   

   
  

  
-

  
   

   
  

32
1,

48
0,

52
9

   
  

  
   

  
-

   
  

  
   

 
32

1
,4

8
0,

52
9

  
   

   
  

  
-

   
  

  
   

  
   

   
  

 
20

19
3.

38
%

33
2,

3
5

8,
1

88
   

  
   

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
33

2
,3

58
,1

8
8

   
  

   
  

  
-

  
   

   
  

 
33

2,
35

8,
1

88
  

   
   

  
  

-
  

   
   

  
33

2,
35

8,
18

8
   

  
  

   
  

-
   

  
  

   
 

33
2

,3
5

8,
18

8
  

   
   

  
  

-
   

  
  

   
  

   
   

  
 

20
20

34
1,

9
8

2,
4

20
   

  
   

  
 

2.
90

%
35

3
,8

76
,4

6
8

   
  

   
  

  
6.

47
%

34
5,

87
6,

5
52

  
   

   
  

  
4.

07
%

34
6

,6
49

,5
90

   
  

  
   

  
4.

30
%

34
6

,6
4

9,
59

0
  

   
   

  
  

4.
30

%
20

21
35

2,
4

1
7,

5
18

   
  

   
  

 
3.

05
%

36
0

,1
20

,9
8

4
   

  
   

  
  

1.
76

%
36

2,
77

2,
4

35
  

   
   

  
  

4.
88

%
35

4
,9

69
,1

80
   

  
  

   
  

2.
40

%
35

4
,9

6
9,

18
0

  
   

   
  

  
2.

40
%

20
22

36
3,

0
6

6,
5

28
   

  
   

  
 

3.
02

%
36

8
,6

16
,7

8
3

   
  

   
  

  
2.

36
%

37
9,

93
4,

6
77

  
   

   
  

  
4.

73
%

36
3

,8
43

,4
09

   
  

  
   

  
2.

50
%

36
3

,8
4

3,
40

9
  

   
   

  
  

2.
50

%
20

23
37

4,
0

5
2,

4
14

   
  

   
  

 
3.

03
%

38
3

,4
54

,0
3

3
   

  
   

  
  

4.
03

%
39

5,
43

8,
1

24
  

   
   

  
  

4.
08

%
37

6
,2

14
,0

85
   

  
  

   
  

3.
40

%
37

6
,2

1
4,

08
5

  
   

   
  

  
3.

40
%

20
24

38
5,

2
8

8,
9

63
   

  
   

  
 

3.
00

%
39

7
,1

42
,0

4
5

   
  

   
  

  
3.

57
%

40
8,

41
7,

7
55

  
   

   
  

  
3.

28
%

38
9

,0
05

,3
64

   
  

  
   

  
3.

40
%

38
9

,0
0

5,
36

4
  

   
   

  
  

3.
40

%
20

25
39

6,
7

8
7,

7
73

   
  

   
  

 
2.

98
%

41
1

,8
95

,8
0

2
   

  
   

  
  

3.
71

%
42

2,
38

8,
0

98
  

   
   

  
  

3.
42

%
40

2,
1

27
,8

73
  

   
   

  
  

3.
37

%
20

26
40

8,
7

3
0,

0
15

   
  

   
  

 
3.

01
%

42
7

,0
41

,0
1

7
   

  
   

  
  

3.
68

%
43

9,
00

4,
7

67
  

   
   

  
  

3.
93

%
41

6,
3

64
,0

91
  

   
   

  
  

3.
54

%
20

27
42

1,
2

5
1,

0
55

   
  

   
  

 
3.

06
%

44
2

,8
01

,0
6

6
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
45

8,
35

0,
9

70
  

   
   

  
  

4.
41

%
43

1,
8

53
,8

86
  

   
   

  
  

3.
72

%
20

28
43

4,
0

4
4,

4
42

   
  

   
  

 
3.

04
%

45
9

,1
17

,9
4

6
   

  
   

  
  

3.
68

%
47

9,
59

7,
0

80
  

   
   

  
  

4.
64

%
44

8,
2

02
,8

06
  

   
   

  
  

3.
79

%
20

29
44

7,
0

1
7,

6
61

   
  

   
  

 
2.

99
%

47
6

,0
46

,6
9

7
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
50

2,
89

7,
1

78
  

   
   

  
  

4.
86

%
46

5,
4

35
,3

27
  

   
   

  
  

3.
84

%
20

30
46

0,
4

1
4,

0
56

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

49
3

,5
95

,1
1

4
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
52

8,
38

7,
8

55
  

   
   

  
  

5.
07

%
48

3,
6

67
,8

01
  

   
   

  
  

3.
92

%
20

31
47

4,
2

1
1,

9
39

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

51
1

,7
92

,3
5

8
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
55

3,
28

2,
8

26
  

   
   

  
  

4.
71

%
50

2,
0

39
,1

35
  

   
   

  
  

3.
80

%
20

32
48

8,
4

2
3,

3
41

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

53
0

,6
59

,6
5

1
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
57

9,
11

2,
6

15
  

   
   

  
  

4.
67

%
52

1,
0

35
,9

94
  

   
   

  
  

3.
78

%
20

33
50

3,
0

6
0,

6
56

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

55
0

,2
22

,8
4

1
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
60

5,
72

2,
7

35
  

   
   

  
  

4.
59

%
54

0,
6

24
,1

89
  

   
   

  
  

3.
76

%
20

34
51

8,
1

3
6,

6
49

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

57
0

,5
07

,0
8

9
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
63

2,
97

9,
8

28
  

   
   

  
  

4.
50

%
56

0,
7

77
,4

59
  

   
   

  
  

3.
73

%
20

35
53

3,
6

6
4,

4
68

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

59
1

,5
39

,1
8

2
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
66

0,
75

6,
1

82
  

   
   

  
  

4.
39

%
58

1,
4

73
,1

54
  

   
   

  
  

3.
69

%
20

36
54

9,
6

5
7,

6
54

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

61
3

,3
46

,6
2

9
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
68

9,
86

4,
0

42
  

   
   

  
  

4.
41

%
60

2,
9

65
,6

74
  

   
   

  
  

3.
70

%
20

37
56

6,
1

3
0,

1
56

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

63
5

,9
58

,0
1

7
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
71

9,
32

2,
6

09
  

   
   

  
  

4.
27

%
62

4,
9

81
,2

05
  

   
   

  
  

3.
65

%
20

38
58

3,
0

9
6,

3
38

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

65
9

,4
02

,9
8

8
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
75

0,
06

1,
4

61
  

   
   

  
  

4.
27

%
64

7,
8

07
,0

49
  

   
   

  
  

3.
65

%
20

39
60

0,
5

7
0,

9
97

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

68
3

,7
12

,2
7

1
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
78

1,
61

0,
9

90
  

   
   

  
  

4.
21

%
67

1,
3

21
,7

80
  

   
   

  
  

3.
63

%
20

40
61

8,
5

6
9,

3
73

   
  

   
  

 
3.

00
%

70
8

,9
17

,7
3

4
   

  
   

  
  

3.
69

%
81

4,
80

5,
4

98
  

   
   

  
  

4.
25

%
69

5,
7

81
,1

02
  

   
   

  
  

3.
64

%
20

41
**

47
7,

8
3

0,
3

72
   

  
   

  
 

3.
00

%
55

1
,2

89
,3

0
3

   
  

   
  

  
3.

69
%

63
6,

82
0,

8
16

  
   

   
  

  
4.

21
%

54
0,

7
81

,3
79

  
   

   
  

  
3.

63
%

12
,7

1
2,

2
06

,1
8

8
$ 

  
  

3.
00

%
13

,5
94

,8
57

,4
1

7
$ 

   
 

3.
68

%
14

,5
6

1,
20

6,
4

9
2

$ 
  

  
4.

36
%

4,
24

4
,4

83
,0

28
$ 

   
  

 
3.

20
%

13
,3

81
,7

2
2

,9
3

4
$ 

  
  

3.
58

%

*F
is

ca
l y

e
a

rs
 2

01
1 

th
ro

u
gh

 2
01

7
 r

ep
re

se
nt

 a
ct

u
al

 s
a

le
s 

ta
x 

re
ce

ip
ts

. F
is

ca
l Y

e
ar

 2
0

1
8 

is
 b

a
se

d 
o

n
 e

st
im

at
e

d 
sa

le
s 

ta
x 

re
ve

n
u

es
 f

ro
m

 M
u

ni
S

e
rv

ic
es

, L
L

C
. 

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

20
1

9 
re

pr
es

en
t a

ct
u

al
 s

al
es

 t
ax

 r
ec

ei
pt

s 
p

lu
s 

$
1.

5
8 

m
ill

io
n

a
dd

iti
on

a
l r

ev
e

nu
e

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 f

or
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

1
8 

a
bo

ve
 M

u
ni

S
e

rv
ic

es
 F

is
ca

l Y
e

ar
 2

01
8

 e
st

im
at

e
. 

**
 F

is
ca

l y
e

a
r 

20
1

1 
in

cl
u

d
es

 s
al

e
s 

ta
x 

re
ce

ip
ts

 f
o

r 
on

e
 q

u
ar

te
r 

an
d

 fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

2
04

1 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 f
or

e
ca

st
e

d 
sa

le
s 

ta
x 

re
ce

ip
ts

 f
o

r 
th

re
e

 q
ua

rt
er

s.

T
o

ta
l

M
u

n
iS

er
v

ic
es

 
B

o
ar

d
 A

p
p

ro
v

ed
 F

o
re

ca
s

t

F
is

ca
l

Y
e

ar

C
h

a
p

m
an

 
U

C
L

A
 

C
S

U
F

 

ATTACHMENT A



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

November 13, 2019 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Environmental Mitigation Program Endowment Fund Investment 

Report for September 30, 2019 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority has developed a Natural 
Community Conservation Plan/Habitat Conservation Plan, acquired 
conservation properties, and funded habitat restoration projects to mitigate the 
impacts of Measure M2 freeway projects.  California Community Foundation 
manages the non-wasting endowment required to pay for the long-term 
management of the conservation properties.  Each quarter, the California 
Community Foundation publishes a comprehensive report detailing the 
composition of the pool and its performance.  Attached are the quarterly 
investment reports for the Endowment Pool for the period ending  
September 30, 2019. The reports have been reviewed and are consistent with 
the pool objectives. 
 
Recommendation  
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
On September 26, 2016, the Board of Directors approved the selection of the 
California Community Foundation (CCF) as an endowment fund manager for the 
Measure M2 Freeway Environmental Mitigation Program. Annually, 
approximately $2.9 million will be deposited in the endowment. As of  
September 30, 2019, the Orange County Transportation Authority has made four 
deposits to the Endowment Pool, each in the amount of $2,877,000.   These 
annual deposits are expected to continue for ten to 12 years, or until the fund 
totals approximately $46.2 million. 
 
  



Environmental Mitigation Program Endowment Fund 
Investment Report for September 30, 2019 

Page 2 
 

 

 

Discussion 
 
As of September 30, 2019, total pool assets in the CCF Endowment Pool were  
$1.127 billion.  Total foundation assets were $1.86 billion.  Performance for the 
Endowment Pool was 1.2 percent for the month, exceeding the benchmark by 
0.2 percent; -0.2 percent for the quarter, 0.6 percent below the benchmark.  The 
one-year return was 2.5 percent, 1 percent below the benchmark. 
 
The balance as of September 30, 2019, was $12,393,157, with the goal to reach 
a projected balance of $12,440,408 by June 30, 2020. 
 
The projected annualized cost for endowment services was 0.75 percent based 
on indications received during the due diligence process. Based on the current 
balance of the endowment, the cost for administration services is 0.25 percent.  
 
Summary 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority is submitting a copy of the 
California Community Foundation Investment Report to the Board of Directors.  
The report is for the quarter ending September 30, 2019. 
 
Attachments 
 
A. California Community Foundation Fund Statement  September 30, 2019 
B. California Community Foundation Endowment Pool Investments   

September 30, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 

 

Approved by: 

 
 

Robert Davis Andrew Oftelie 
Department Manager, 
Treasury and Public Finance  
714-560-5675 

Chief Financial Officer 
Finance and Administration  
714-560-5649 

 























ATTACHMENT A



































2



3

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
En

vi
ro

nm
e

n
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
 D

e
si

g
n

R
O

W
 C

er
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
/ 

C
o

n
s

tr
uc

ti
o

n
 

R
e

a
d

y

A
d

ve
rt

is
e

 
C

o
n

s
tr

uc
ti

o
n

A
w

a
rd

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t

C
o

m
p

le
te

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

A
p

r-
15

J
u

n
-1

7
S

e
p

-1
7

M
ar

-1
8

N
o

v
-1

8
A

p
r-

21



4

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
E

n
vi

ro
nm

e
n

ta
l

C
o

m
p

le
te

 D
e

s
ig

n
R

O
W

 C
er

ti
fi

c
at

io
n

/ 
C

o
n

s
tr

uc
ti

o
n

 
R

e
a

d
y

A
d

ve
rt

is
e

 
C

o
n

s
tr

uc
ti

o
n

A
w

a
rd

 C
o

n
tr

a
c

t
C

o
m

p
le

te
C

o
n

s
tr

uc
ti

o
n

F
e

b
-2

0
-

-
-

-
-



5

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
 D

e
s

ig
n

R
O

W
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

/ 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 

R
e

a
d

y

A
d

ve
rt

is
e

 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
A

w
a

rd
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t

C
o

m
p

le
te

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti
o

n

M
a
y

-1
9

F
e
b

-2
0

J
u

n
-2

0
S

e
p

-2
0

O
c

t-
2

4
D

e
c

-1
7

M
a

y
-1

8
N

o
v
-1

8
M

a
r-

1
9

N
o

v
-2

3
A

u
g

-1
8

M
a

y
-1

9
A

u
g

-1
9

D
e
c

-1
9

F
e

b
-2

5
M

a
y

-1
4



6

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
En

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l

C
o

m
p

le
te

 D
e

s
ig

n
R

O
W

 C
er

ti
fi

c
at

io
n

/ 
C

o
n

s
tr

uc
ti

o
n

 
R

e
a

d
y

A
d

ve
rt

is
e

 
C

o
n

s
tr

uc
ti

o
n

A
w

a
rd

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t

C
o

m
p

le
te

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

A
p

r-
2

0
-

-
-

-
-



7

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
 D

e
si

g
n

R
O

W
 C

e
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
/ 

C
o

n
s

tr
uc

ti
o

n
 

R
e

a
d

y

A
d

ve
rt

is
e

 
C

o
n

s
tr

uc
ti

o
n

A
w

a
rd

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t

C
o

m
p

le
te

C
o

n
s

tr
uc

ti
o

n

Ju
n

-0
9

D
e

c
-1

1
A

p
r-

1
2

J
u

n
-1

2
A

u
g

-1
2

Ja
n

-1
6



8

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
 D

e
s

ig
n

R
O

W
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

/ 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
a

d
y

A
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

A
w

a
rd

 C
o
n

tr
a

c
t

B
e

g
in

 A
d

v
e
rt

is
e

 &
 

A
w

a
rd

C
o

m
p

le
te

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

O
c
t-

1
3

J
a

n
-1

4
S

e
p

-1
4

N
o

v
-1

4
S

e
p

-1
4

A
u

g
-1

8
M

a
y
-1

3
F

e
b

-1
3

F
e
b

-1
4

J
u

n
-1

4
F

e
b

-1
4

J
u

l-
1

7
J
a

n
-1

3
F

e
b

-1
3

A
u

g
-1

3
D

e
c
-1

3
A

u
g

-1
3

J
u

l-
1

8
O

c
t-

1
1



9



(8
00

) 
7

24
-0

3
53

10

W
ee

kl
y 

E
m

a
il 

B
la

st
s

S
oc

ia
l M

e
d

ia
D

ir
ec

t 
M

a
il

C
a

n
va

ss
in

g 
F

lie
rs

B
us

in
e

ss
 O

u
tr

ea
ch

N
e

ig
h

bo
rh

o
od

 M
ee

tin
gs

O
ne

-o
n

-o
ne

 B
rie

fin
g

s
S

pe
a

ke
rs

 B
u

re
a

u 
P

re
se

n
ta

tio
ns



11



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

December 2, 2019 
 
 
To: Regional Planning and Highways Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer   
 
Subject: Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  

July 2019 Through September 2019 
 
 
Overview 
 
Staff has prepared a Measure M2 quarterly progress report for the period of  
July 2019 through September 2019, for review by the Orange County 
Transportation Authority Board of Directors. This report highlights progress on 
Measure M2 projects and programs and will be available to the public via the 
Orange County Transportation Authority website.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
On November 7, 2006, Orange County voters, by a margin of 69.7 percent,  
approved the Renewed Measure M Transportation Investment Plan (Plan) for 
the Measure M2 (M2) one half-cent sales tax for transportation improvements. 
The Plan provides a 30-year revenue stream for a broad range of transportation 
and environmental improvements, as well as a governing ordinance, which 
defines the requirements for implementing the Plan.  Ordinance No. 3 designates 
the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) as responsible for 

followed.  
 
OCTA is committed to fulfilling the promises made in M2.  This means not only 
completing the projects described in the Plan, but adhering to numerous specific 
requirements and high standards of quality called for in the measure,  
as identified in the ordinance.  Ordinance No. 3 requires that quarterly status 
reports regarding the major projects detailed in the Plan be brought to the  
 
  



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2019 Through September 2019 

Page 2 
 

 

 

OCTA Board of Directors (Board).  On September 25, 2017, the Board approved 
rebranding M2 externally easure M awareness 
and public perception, as well as to avoid confusion with the recently approved,  
similarly named, Los Angeles County  

. progress is summarized in these quarterly progress reports, 
which are posted online for public review.   
 
Discussion 
 
This quarterly report reflects current activities and progress across all M2 
programs for the period of July 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019  
(Attachment A).   
 
The quarterly report is designed to be easy to navigate and public friendly, 

 The report includes budget 
and schedule information provided from the Capital Action Plan,  
and Local Fair Share and Senior Mobility Program payments made to cities 
during the quarter, as well as total distributions from M2 inception through  
September 2019.   
 
Additionally, Attachment A includes a summary of the Program Management 
Office activities that have taken place during the quarter.  Two areas in particular 
are highlighted below.   
 
Future Outlook 
 
At the Boards  direction, OCTA contracts with two local economists to monitor 
and analyze key early warning indicators affecting the construction market. The 
information is incorporated in a cost pressure index model to provide insight on 

the Next 10 Delivery Plan. The results of the analysis were 
presented to the Board on October 28, 2019, and identified a potential that OCTA 
will experience a moderate cost environment of two to six percent inflation during 
2020 through 2022. analysis on measurable cost pressures has 
tempered compared to the 2018 analysis. Staff will continue to monitor market 
conditions and effects on the advancement of the Next 10 Delivery Plan and 
provide updates to the Board as appropriate. 
 
Next 10 Delivery Plan 
 
As part of the annual review, staff reviewed the Board-adopted commitments 
included in the Next 10 Delivery Plan, and incorporated changes in revenues 
and project costs to ensure the plan remains deliverable. The 2019 review was 
completed in November and the updated Next 10 Delivery Plan was presented 



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2019 Through September 2019 

Page 3 
 

 

 

to the Board on November 11, 2019.  The review incorporates the revised  
2019 sales tax revenue forecast of $13.4 billion (presented to the Board on 
October 28, 2019), updated project and program cash flows, and incorporated 
information provided through the updated construction cost pressure index 
(presented to the Board on October 28, 2019).  
 
Progress Update 
 
The following provides an overview of M2 accomplishments to date by mode,  
as well as highlights of activities that occurred during the first quarter of  
fiscal year (FY) 2020. 
 
Freeway Program 
 
The M2 Freeway Program consists of 30 projects or project segments to be 
delivered by 2041. Currently, while in year nine of the 30-year program,  
12 segments are complete, three are in construction, and another three are 
readying for construction. The remaining 12 segments are in various stages of 
project development, with eight (included in the 2019 updated Next 10 Delivery 
Plan) of those slated to go into construction and be complete or nearing 
completion by 2026.  
 
Key freeway project activities taking place this quarter, along with updates, are 
highlighted below. 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2019 Through September 2019 

Page 4 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Since 2011, approximately $787 million1 has been allocated to local jurisdictions 
for transportation improvements through the streets and roads competitive and 
formula funding programs. Additionally, M2 provided a portion of the  
$664 million to grade separate seven street and rail crossings, leveraging the 
majority of the funds ($520 million) from local, state, and federal sources.   
 

 

 
 

  

 
1 Excludes suspended funds. On May 13, 2019, the Board determined the City of Santa Ana and 
City of Stanton ineligible to receive all net M2 revenues. 



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2019 Through September 2019 

Page 5 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
Since 2011, M2 has provided competitive funding commitments for bus and 
station van extension projects to Metrolink ($483,133 to date), local  
community-based transit circulators and planning studies ($31 million to date), 
bus stop improvements ($1.8 million to date), and funding to support specific 
programs to meet the needs of seniors and persons with disabilities  
($71.7 million2  to date).  Key transit project activities taking place this quarter 
are highlighted below. 
 
 

 
 

 
2 Excludes suspended funds. On May 13, 2019, the Board determined the City of Santa Ana and 
the City of Stanton ineligible to receive all net M2 revenues. Disbursement of M2 funds have 
been suspended until the cities achieve compliance and the Board reconsiders the matter by  
May 2020. 



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2019 Through September 2019 

Page 6 
 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2019 Through September 2019 

Page 7 
 

 

 

Challenges 
 
As with all major programs, challenges arise and need to be monitored and 
addressed. A few key challenges are highlighted below.  
 
The May 13, 2019, Board action finding the City of Santa Ana and City of Stanton 
ineligible (first time in the life of Measure M1 and M2), suspended M2 funding 
allocations until confirmation by audit of compliance and subsequent Board 
action. As of October 22, 2019, both the cities of Santa Ana and Stanton have 
executed settlement agreements with OCTA to correct and remedy the  
FY 2017-18 audit issues. Upon notification in writing to OCTA of the cities 
finalized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, reflecting an unmodified 
opinion and receipt by OCTA of the FY 2018-19 Expenditure Report, OCTA staff 
will expedite, as feasible, the required audit. The audit will review  
FY 2018-19 Expenditure Report and FY 2018-19 maintenance of effort.  
The Board will revisit the status of compliance by May 2020 or sooner, as 
appropriate. 
 
On all M2 projects, staff is committed to develop and implement the most  
cost-effective design that provides the highest congestion relief with the least 
impact to businesses and communities. Four projects are facing challenges, 
which are detailed below.  
 
 

 
 
 

 
  



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2019 Through September 2019 

Page 8 
 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
M2 project delivery is monitored closely, and progress, as well as challenges, 
are presented to the Board through these quarterly staff reports, individual 
project staff reports, as well as through the Capital Action Plan quarterly 
performance metrics reports from the Capital Programs Division. 
 
  



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2019 Through September 2019 

Page 9 
 

 

 

Summary 
 
As required by M2 Ordinance No. 3, a quarterly report covering activities from 
July 2019 through September 2019 is provided to update progress in 
implementing the Plan.  The above information and the attached details indicate 
significant progress on the overall M2 Program.  To be cost-effective and to 
facilitate accessibility and transparency of information available to stakeholders 
and the public, the M2 Quarterly Progress Report is made available through the 
OCTA website.  Hard copies are available by mail upon request.   
 
Attachment 
 
A. Measure M2 Progress Report, First Quarter Fiscal Year 2019-20,  

July 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Prepared by: 

 
 

 
Approved by: 

 
 

Tamara Warren Kia Mortazavi 
Manager, Program Management Office 
(714) 560-5590 

Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

December 2, 2019 
 
 
To: Regional Planning and Highways Committee  
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2019-20 Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review  
 
 
Overview 
 
Measure M2 requires all local agencies in Orange County to annually satisfy 
eligibility requirements in order to receive Measure M2 net revenues. Required 
documentation for this review period has been received and reviewed by the 
Taxpayer Oversight Committee and Orange County Transportation Authority staff. 
Findings and recommendations are  and 
approval. 
 
Recommendations 
 
A. Approve 33 currently eligible local agencies as eligible to continue to 

receive Measure M2 net revenues.  
 

B. Receive and file the Measure M2 eligibility verification documents 
submitted by the cities of Santa Ana and Stanton.  

 
Background 
 
Local agencies are required to meet Measure M2 (M2) eligibility requirements and 
submit eligibility verification packages to the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) annually in order to remain eligible to receive M2 net revenues. 
There are 13 eligibility requirements which local agencies must either meet and/or 
adhere to. However, not all 13 eligibility components require verification each 
eligibility cycle. For reference, a summary of M2 eligibility requirements and their 
respective due dates is provided in Attachment A. 
 
Per the M2 Ordinance, the Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) is responsible 
for the review of five of the 13 eligibility requirements. These include the 
Congestion Management Program (CMP), Mitigation Fee Programs (MFPs), 
 
  



Fiscal Year 2019-20 Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review Page 2 
 

 

 

Local Signal Synchronization Plans (LSSPs), Pavement Management  
Plans (PMP), and Expenditure Reports (ERs)1. The CMP, MFPs, LSSPs, and 
PMPs are due on June 30 and are reviewed in the fall. ERs are due on  
December 31, six months after the close of the fiscal year and are reviewed in the 
spring2.  
 
To assist with its eligibility review responsibilities, the TOC has designated an 
Annual Eligibility Review (AER) Subcommittee to initially receive and review 
required M2 Eligibility submittals prior to review by the TOC. Both the AER 
Subcommittee and TOC convened earlier this year and have completed their 
respective reviews. Their findings are discussed below.  
 
Discussion 
 
During this past summer, all 35 local agencies (34 cities and the County of Orange) 
submitted all required M2 eligibility verification documents  
June 30, 2019 deadline. Through late summer and early fall, OCTA reviewed all 
local agencies  eligibility verification documents to ensure completion, accuracy, 
and consistency with M2 Ordinance requirements. Once s review was 
complete, the AER Subcommittee was convened with the goal of reviewing and 
discussing the three required eligibility components that were due and were also 
under the purview of the subcommittee. These included the CMP, MFPs, and  
14 PMP submittals3.  
 
At this meeting, the AER Subcommittee reviewed and confirmed that all 35 local 
agencies had submitted appropriate required documentation in order to satisfy M2 
eligibility submittal requirements and recommended that these findings be 
communicated to the TOC for its review and consideration. On October 8, 2019, 
the TOC reviewed  findings and recommendations, and 
concurred that all local agencies CMP, MFPs, and 14 PMP submittals were 
sufficient and recommended that these findings be submitted to the OCTA Board 
of Directors (Board) for final review and approval.  
 
The findings on the CMP, MFPs, and 14 PMPs are presented for Board 
consideration.  In addition to these findings, OCTA 
eight M2 eligibility components, which OCTA is responsible for reviewing, are also 
provided in Attachment B. Based upon the findings identified in Attachment B, staff 
is recommending that 33 currently eligible Orange County local agencies be found 
eligible to continue to receive net M2 revenues. The cities of Santa Ana and 
Stanton submitted the required documentation to satisfy M2 eligibility submittal 
requirements this cycle; however, these cities are currently ineligible to receive net 
M2 revenues due to a previous and separate Board action.  

 
1 Note: The other eight required M2 eligibility components are reviewed by OCTA. 
2 Note: 14 agencies update their PMPs on odd-numbered fiscal years, while 21 agencies update 
their PMPs on even-numbered fiscal years. 
3 Note: LSSPs were not required to be submitted for this eligibility review cycle. 



Fiscal Year 2019-20 Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review Page 3 
 

 

 

Although the M2 eligibility verification documents submitted by these two local 
agencies fulfill the respective requirements, this review will not modify their 
existing M2 ineligible status. The review of these materials will be helpful in 
ensuring and maintaining timely M2 compliance should the Board find these cities 
eligible for M2 funds upon resolution of prior maintenance of effort shortcomings.  
 
Summary 
 
All local agencies in Orange County have submitted all required  
M2 documentation due at this time. The TOC and OCTA have reviewed all 
required documentation, and a finding of eligibility is requested for 33 currently 
eligible Orange County local agencies, and a receive and file action of the 
submitted M2 eligibility verification documents is requested for the two currently 
ineligible local agencies.  
 
Attachments 
 
A. Measure M2 Eligibility Requirements and Submittal Schedule Summary, 

Fiscal Year 2019-20 
B. Fiscal Year 2019-20, Measure M2 Eligibility Review Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Prepared by: 

 
 

 
Approved by: 

 
 

Kelsey Imler Kia Mortazavi 
Associate Transportation Funding Analyst 
(714) 560-5397 

Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 



ATTACHMENT A  

Measure M2 Eligibility Requirements and Submittal Schedule Summary 
Fiscal Year 2019-20 

 
Compliance Category Frequency Required 

Capital Improvement Program Annual 
(June 30)  

Circulation Element/Master Plan of Arterial 
Highways Consistency  

Biennial 
(June 30)  

Congestion Management Program Biennial 
(June 30)  

Expenditure Report Annual 
(December 31)  

Local Signal Synchronization Plan Every Three Years 
(i.e. June 30, 2020) 

 

Maintenance of Effort Annual 
(June 30)  

Mitigation Fee Program (MFP) Biennial 
(June 30)1  

No Supplanting of Developer Fees Annual 
(June 30)  

Pavement Management Plan (PMP)  Biennial  
(June 30)2  

Timely Submittal of Project Final Reports 
Within Six Months of 
Project Completion 

 

Timely Use of Net Revenues  Annual 
(June 30)  

Traffic Forum Participation  Annual 
(June 30)  

Transit and Non-Motorized Transportation 
Land-Use Planning Strategies 

Annual 
(June 30)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______  

1 A jurisdiction must submit their updated program and revised fee schedule or process methodology when 
the jurisdiction updates their MFP and/or nexus study. 

2 14 agencies update their PMPs on odd-numbered fiscal years, while 21 agencies update their PMPs 
on even-numbered fiscal years. 



 F
is

c
al

 Y
ea

r 
2

01
9-

2
0 

M
e

as
u

re
 M

2
 E

li
g

ib
il

it
y 

R
ev

ie
w

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

A
ge

n
cy

C
a

p
ita

l I
m

pr
o

ve
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
gr

am
  

C
ir

cu
la

tio
n

 E
le

m
e

nt
/ 

M
P

A
H

 C
o

n
si

st
e

n
cy

C
o

n
g

es
tio

n
 

M
a

na
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

E
xp

e
n

di
tu

re
 

R
e

p
o

rt
L

a
nd

-U
se

 P
la

n
ni

ng
 

S
tr

a
te

gi
es

M
a

in
te

n
a

nc
e

 o
f 

E
ff

o
rt

 M
iti

g
a

tio
n

 F
ee

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 

 N
o 

S
u

p
pl

a
n

tin
g

 
of

 D
e

ve
lo

p
e

r 
F

ee
s 

1 
P

a
ve

m
en

t 
M

a
na

g
em

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 

T
im

el
y 

S
ub

m
itt

a
l o

f 
F

in
al

 R
e

po
rt

s
T

im
el

y 
U

se
 o

f 
N

e
t 

R
e

ve
nu

e
s

T
ra

ff
ic

 
F

o
ru

m

A
lis

o
 V

ie
jo

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

N
/A

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

A
na

h
e

im
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

B
re

a
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

B
u

e
na

 P
a

rk
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

C
o

st
a

 M
e

sa
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

C
o

u
nt

y 
o

f O
ra

ng
e

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
P

e
n

d
in

g
2

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
N

/A
3

P
e

n
d

in
g

2
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

C
yp

re
ss

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

D
a

na
 P

o
in

t
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

F
ou

n
ta

in
 V

a
lle

y
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

F
u

lle
rt

o
n

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

N
/A

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

G
a

rd
e

n 
G

ro
ve

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

N
/A

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

H
u

n
tin

gt
o

n 
B

e
a

ch
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

Ir
vi

n
e

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

L
a 

H
a

br
a

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

L
a 

P
a

lm
a

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

N
/A

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

L
a

gu
n

a 
B

e
ac

h
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

L
a

gu
na

 H
ill

s
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

L
a

gu
n

a 
N

ig
u

el
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

L
a

gu
n

a 
W

oo
d

s
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

L
a

ke
 F

o
re

st
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

L
o

s 
A

la
m

ito
s

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

M
is

si
on

 V
ie

jo
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

N
e

w
p

o
rt

 B
e

ac
h

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

O
ra

n
ge

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

N
/A

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

P
la

ce
n

tia
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

R
a

n
ch

o 
S

a
n

ta
 M

a
rg

a
ri

ta
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

S
a

n
 C

le
m

e
n

te
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
a

n
 J

ua
n

 C
ap

is
tr

an
o

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

S
a

n
ta

 A
n

a
4

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

N
/A

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
e

a
l B

ea
ch

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

N
/A

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
ta

n
to

n
4

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

T
u

st
in

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

V
ill

a 
P

a
rk

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

N
/A

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

W
e

st
m

in
st

er
S

a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

P
en

d
in

g
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
N

/A
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry

Y
o

rb
a

 L
in

d
a

S
a

tis
fa

ct
o

ry
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
P

en
d

in
g

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

or
y

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

N
/A

S
at

is
fa

ct
or

y
S

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

T
o

ta
ls

3
5

3
5

3
5

-
35

3
5

3
5

3
5

1
4

3
5

3
5

3
5

A
cr

o
n

ym
s:

M
P

A
H

 -
 M

as
te

r 
P

la
n

 o
f 

A
rt

e
ri

a
l H

ig
h

w
a

ys
C

o
u

nt
y 

- 
C

o
un

ty
 o

f O
ra

n
g

e
P

M
P

- 
P

a
ve

m
e

n
t M

an
a

ge
m

e
nt

 P
la

n
 

M
2

 -
 M

ea
su

re
 M

2
M

F
P

 -
 M

iti
ga

tio
n

 F
e

e
 P

ro
gr

a
m

H
U

T
A

 -
 H

ig
h

w
a

y 
U

se
rs

 T
a

x 
A

cc
o

un
t

N
/A

 -
 N

o
t 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
B

o
a

rd
 -

 B
o

a
rd

 o
f D

ir
e

ct
or

s

1 
1

4 
a

ge
n

ci
e

s 
u

p
d

at
e

 th
e

ir
 P

M
P

s 
on

 o
dd

-n
u

m
b

er
e

d
 fi

sc
a

l y
e

a
rs

, 
w

h
ile

 2
1 

a
g

en
ci

e
s 

up
d

at
e

 t
he

ir
 P

M
P

s 
o

n 
e

ve
n

-n
u

m
b

e
re

d
 fi

sc
a

l y
e

a
rs

.

N
o

te
: 

Lo
ca

l S
ig

n
al

 S
yn

ch
ro

n
iz

a
tio

n
 P

la
n

s 
a

re
 n

o
t s

h
o

w
n

 o
n 

th
e

 t
a

bl
e

 d
u

e 
to

 th
e

se
 s

u
bm

itt
al

s 
n

o
t b

e
in

g 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 d
ur

in
g

 th
is

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

yc
le

.

2  O
C

T
A

 s
ta

ff
 r

e
q

u
es

te
d 

re
vi

si
o

n 
to

 t
h

e
 C

ou
nt

y'
s 

M
P

A
H

 a
n

d
 M

F
P

 r
e

so
lu

tio
n

. 
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ty
 is

 a
n

tic
ip

a
te

d
 t

o
 s

e
cu

re
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f a
 r

ev
is

e
d

 r
e

so
lu

tio
n

 in
 N

ov
e

m
b

er
. T

h
e

se
 s

ub
m

itt
a

ls
 a

re
 n

o
te

d
 a

s 
pe

n
di

ng
 d

u
e

 t
o 

th
e 

fa
ct

 th
a

t t
h

e 
C

o
u

nt
y'

s 
a

p
p

ro
va

l i
s 

an
tic

ip
a

te
d

 t
o 

o
cc

ur
 

a
fte

r 
th

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 h

a
s 

b
ee

n 
fin

a
liz

e
d.

 
3  M

a
in

te
n

an
ce

 o
f 

e
ffo

rt
 is

 b
a

se
d 

o
n 

a
 t

hr
e

e-
ye

a
r 

av
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
d

is
cr

e
tio

n
ar

y 
fu

n
d

 e
xp

e
n

d
itu

re
s 

fo
r 

tr
a

ns
p

o
rt

a
tio

n
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
p

rio
r 

to
 1

99
0

, 
pl

u
s 

a
dj

u
st

m
en

ts
 p

e
rm

itt
e

d
 b

y 
th

e 
M

2 
O

rd
in

a
nc

e
. 

H
o

w
e

ve
r,

 O
ra

ng
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

u
b

lic
 W

or
ks

 a
nd

 th
e

ir
 p

re
de

ce
ss

o
r 

a
g

e
nc

ie
s 

d
id

 
n

ot
 a

nd
 d

o
 n

o
t u

se
 d

is
cr

et
io

n
a

ry
 f

u
nd

s 
fo

r 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 p
u

rp
o

se
s.

 T
he

 s
o

ur
ce

s 
o

f t
h

e
ir 

tr
a

ns
p

or
ta

tio
n 

fu
nd

s 
ha

ve
 b

e
e

n 
va

ri
ou

s 
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 o
r 

p
a

rt
ia

lly
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d
 fu

nd
s 

e.
g

.,
 H

U
T

A
, 

fe
d

e
ra

l g
ra

n
ts

, a
ss

es
sm

e
n

t d
is

tr
ic

ts
, d

ev
e

lo
p

e
r 

im
p

a
ct

 fe
e

s,
 c

o
m

m
un

ity
 f

a
ci

lit
ie

s 
d

is
tr

ic
ts

, 
S

u
bd

iv
is

io
n

 M
a

p 
A

ct
 H

ig
h

w
a

y,
 a

n
d

 b
ri

d
ge

 f
e

es
 e

tc
. 

It
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

at
 a

bo
u

t 4
0

 p
e

rc
en

t 
o

f t
h

e 
H

U
T

A
 r

e
ve

n
u

es
 t

h
at

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 O
ra

ng
e

 C
ou

n
ty

 lo
ca

l a
ge

nc
ie

s 
g

o 
to

 t
he

 C
ou

n
ty

. 
4  T

h
e

 c
iti

e
s 

o
f 

S
ta

n
to

n
 a

nd
 S

a
nt

a
 A

na
 s

ub
m

itt
e

d
 th

e
 r

e
q

ui
re

d
 d

o
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n
 t

o 
sa

tis
fy

 M
2 

e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 s

u
b

m
itt

al
 r

e
q

ui
re

m
e

nt
s 

th
is

 c
yc

le
, 

ho
w

e
ve

r,
 th

ey
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tly
 in

e
lig

ib
le

 t
o

 r
e

ce
iv

e 
n

e
t M

2 
re

ve
n

u
es

 d
u

e
 to

 a
 p

re
vi

o
us

 a
nd

 s
e

pa
ra

te
 B

oa
rd

 a
ct

io
n.

 S
ta

ff 
is

 
re

co
m

m
e

nd
in

g
 th

e
 a

cc
e

p
ta

n
ce

 o
f t

h
e

 M
2 

e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 v

er
ifi

ca
tio

n 
d

o
cu

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

bm
itt

ed
 b

y 
th

e
se

 t
w

o
 lo

ca
l a

g
en

ci
e

s 
as

 a
 r

ec
e

iv
e

 a
n

d 
fil

e
 a

ct
io

n
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
m

od
ify

 t
he

ir
 e

xi
st

in
g

 M
2

 in
el

ig
ib

le
 s

ta
tu

s 
b

ut
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
lp

fu
l i

n
 e

n
su

ri
ng

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g 

tim
el

y 
M

2 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
 

o
nc

e
 t

he
 B

o
ar

d
 u

lti
m

at
e

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
s 

to
 r

et
u

rn
 t

h
em

 t
o

 a
n

 e
lig

ib
le

 s
ta

tu
s.

 

ATTACHMENT B



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
 
 
 
December 2, 2019 
 
 
To: Regional Planning and Highways Committee 

From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer        

Subject: Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Semi-Annual 
Review  September 2019   

 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority has completed the September 2019 
semi-annual review of projects funded through the Comprehensive Transportation 
Funding Programs. This process regularly reviews the status of Measure M2 
grant-funded projects and provides an opportunity for local agencies to update 
project information and request project modifications, as well as a mechanism for 
the Orange County Transportation Authority to ensure timely progress on  
grant-funded projects. Recommended project adjustments are presented for 
review and approval.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve the requested adjustments to Comprehensive Transportation Funding 
Programs projects and Local Fair Share Program funds. 
 
Background 
 
The Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) is the mechanism 
which the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) uses to administer 
funding for street, road, signal, transit, and water quality projects. The CTFP 
contains a variety of funding programs and sources, including Measure M2 (M2) 
revenues, State-Local Partnership Program funds, and Local Partnership Program 
funds. The CTFP provides local agencies with a comprehensive set of guidelines 
for administration and delivery of various transportation funding grants. 
 
Since the inception of M2, OCTA has made $501 million (including approximately 
$38 million in state and federal funds) competitively available to support  
668 project phases. Previous changes to this original allocation amount reflect an 
estimated reduction in programming of approximately $4.5 million, resulting in a 
total revised allocation of approximately $497 million. 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Semi-Annual 
Review  September 2019    

Page 2 
 

 

 

As of the publishing of this report, 341 project phases have been completed 
(including four phases during this semi-annual review period), 211 project phases 
are considered currently active, including approximately 86 project phases which 
are pending (meaning that work is completed, and final submittals are pending 
and/or need to be finalized), and 66 are planned, which means the local agency 
has not awarded a contract  or started work.  For reference, the table below 
provides a snapshot summary of the current status of all 668 project phases, 
including cancelled phases.  
 

M2 CTFP Summary Table 

  March 2019 Semi-Annual Review 
September 2019 Semi-Annual 

Review 

Project Status Project Phases Allocation 
(after adjustments)  

Project Phases 
Allocations 

(after adjustments)1  

Planned 2   69 $  64.2   66 $  33.7 
Started 3 128 $183.4 125 $204.2 
Pending 4   73 $  60.4   86 $  54.1 
Completed 5 337 $154.8 341 $166.9 
Cancelled 6   39 $  22.7   50 $  37.9 

Total  646 $485.5 668 $496.8 
  
1. Subject to change pending final reconciliation. 
2. Planned - indicates that funds have not been obligated and/or are pending contract award. 
3. Started - indicates that the phase is underway, and funds are obligated. 
4. Pending - indicates that phase work is completed, and final report submittal/approval is pending. 
5. Completed - indicates that phase work is complete, final report is approved, and final payment has been made. 
6. Cancelled - indicates that the phase work will not be completed, and project savings will be returned to the program 

 
* Note: the project phase and allocations listed above are subject to frequent and regular changes due primarily to 
project status updates, final reconciliations, and project closeout processes.   

 
Twice annually, OCTA meets with representatives from local agencies, as needed, 
to review the status of all active and pending project phases to review any local 
agency proposed changes. This process is known as the M2 semi-annual review 
process. Its goals are to review project status, determine the continued viability of 
projects, address local agency concerns, confirm availability of local match funds, 
and ensure timely closeout of all projects funded through the CTFP.   
 
Discussion 
 
As part of the semi-annual review process, local agencies can request any of the 
following five types of project adjustments: 
 
 Delays  local agencies can request a one-time delay of up to 24 months 

to obligate funds, 
 Timely use of funds extensions  once obligated, funds expire 36 months 

from the contract award date. Local agencies can request a one-time 
extension of up to 24 months, 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Semi-Annual 
Review  September 2019    

Page 3 
 

 

 

 Scope changes  local agencies may request minor scope changes to 
projects if they can assure OCTA that the project benefits as committed to 
in the initial application can still be delivered, 

 Transfers  local agencies may request to transfer up to 100 percent of 
project savings to subsequent project phases within a project as long as 
the subsequent phase has been awarded M2 competitive funds, 

 Cancellation  local agencies may request to cancel projects for any 
reason. Cancelled projects are eligible to reapply for M2 funds upon 
resolution of the issues that led to the original project cancellation. 
 

During the September 2019 semi-annual review, proposed adjustments included 
two timely-use of funds extensions for CTFP projects, nine timely-use of funds 
extensions for the Local Fair Share Program, four scope changes, and one project 
transfer. Adjustments are itemized in Attachment A and are described further in 
Attachment B.   
 
Local agencies identified several reasons for this semi-annual review  
requested project adjustments, which included the following: 
 
 Extensions (delays in obtaining permits/project complexities and contract 

phasing coordination), 
 Scope changes (enhanced project benefits, equipment changes to better 

facilitate project delivery, inability to secure timely approvals/permits, and 
route modifications to enhance efficiency and ridership), and 

 Transfers (project savings from an earlier project phase). 
 

Based upon staff review of the September 2019 semi-annual review proposed 
project adjustments, the proposed changes are consistent with prior semi-annual 
review requests and are also appropriate from a CTFP administration perspective. 
These changes have also been reviewed and approved by the OCTA Technical 
Advisory Committee. As such, Board of Directors (Board) approval of these 
proposed adjustments is recommended. Upon Board approval, staff will monitor 
the implementation of these proposed changes through both its normal project 
administration and future semi-annual reviews, which are conducted and reported 
to the Board biannually.   
 
Summary 
 
During the September 2019 semi-annual review process, OCTA reviewed the 
status of all active project phases funded through the M2 CTFP, and staff is 
recommending approval of all project adjustments requested by local agencies for 
this semi-annual review cycle. The next semi-annual review is scheduled for 
March 2020. 
 
 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Semi-Annual 
Review  September 2019    

Page 4 
 

 

 

Attachments 
 
A. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs, September 2019  

Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests 
B. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs, September 2019  

Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared By:     Approved By: 

 
Joseph Alcock     Kia Mortazavi 
Section Manger,      Executive Director, Planning 
Measure M2 Local Programs   (714) 560-5741 
(714) 560-5372     
 
 

 



1 

ATTACHMENT A



2 



3 



4 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs  
September 2019 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 

1 

 
Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) Timely Use of Funds 
Extensions 
 
Once obligated, CTFP funds expire 36 months from the contract award date. Local 
agencies may request a one-time extension of up to 24-months. During this semi-annual 
review cycle, the following timely use of funds extension requests were submitted. 
 
The City of Santa Ana (Santa Ana) is requesting a 12-month timely use of funds extension 
for the construction phase of the Santa Ana Delhi Channel Diversion Project  
(13-SNTA-ECP-3680), from December 2019 to December 2020. Additional time is 
required due to delays in obtaining necessary permits and project complexities.  
 
Santa Ana is requesting a 24-month timely use of funds extension for the Engineering 
phase of the Bristol Street and Memory Lane Intersection Widening Project  
(16-SNTA-ICE-3815), from February 2020 to February 2022. The extension request will 
provide additional time for project phasing coordination. 
 
Local Fair Share (LFS) Timely Use of Funds Extensions 
 
Net revenues received by local jurisdictions through the LFS Program shall be expended 
or encumbered within three years. An extension may be granted but is limited to a total 
of five years from the date of receipt of funds. The Orange County Transportation  
Authority (OCTA) uses the check disbursement date as the date of receipt of funds. 
Requests for extensions must be submitted as part of the semi-annual review process 
prior to the end of the third year from the date of receipt of funds and must include a plan 
of expenditure for the funds.  
 
The City of Brea (Brea) is requesting a 24-month timely use of funds extension of 
$936,986. The funds being considered for extension were disbursed in six separate 
installments and must be expended by the extension deadlines shown in Attachment A.  
Brea is proposing to use these funds primarily on future slurry/seal program and alley 
work. 
 
The City of Yorba Linda (Yorba Linda) is requesting a 24-month timely use of funds 
extension of $512,321. The funds being considered for extension were disbursed in three 
separate installments and must be expended by the extension deadlines shown in 
Attachment A.  Yorba Linda is proposing to use these funds for various improvements 
including drainage, intersections, traffic signal timing and synchronization, traffic calming, 
and various other local improvements. 
 
  

ATTACHMENT B



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs  
September 2019 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 

2 

 
Scope Changes 
 
Agencies may request minor scope changes for CTFP projects if they can assure that the 
project benefits as committed to in the initial application can still be delivered. During this 
semi-annual review cycle, the following scope change requests were submitted. 
 
The City of Costa Mesa (Costa Mesa) is requesting a scope change for  
the implementation phase of the Bear Street Signal Synchronization Project  
(17-CMSA-TSP-3873). The scope change involves providing enhanced project benefits 
to better facilitate traffic flow, which were identified during the design phase, 
installation/replacement of old and damaged fiber optic conduit and cables to better 
facilitate connections to Costa Mesa  and minor field system 
modernization. 
 
OCTA, as administrative lead, is requesting scope changes for the implementation 
phases for the following two projects.  
 
 Alicia Parkway Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Project  

(15-OCTA-TSP-3774). This scope change is comprised of installing new conduit, 
fiber optic cable, and controllers. These changes will facilitate better 

 
(TMC) and peer-to-peer operations.   
 

 Coast Highway Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Project  
(15-OCTA-TSP-3778). The scope change involves removing installation of fiber 
optic cable for intelligent transportation services communications between the  
City of Laguna Niguel
but proved to be too costly and challenging in terms of securing appropriate 
approvals.   
 

The City of Dana Point (Dana Point) is requesting a scope change for the operations and 
maintenance phase of the Summer Weekend Trolley/Harbor Shuttle Project  
(14-DPNT-CBT-3742). The scope change is comprised of cancellation of the  
Harbor Shuttle component of the grant, due primarily to ridership concerns. Dana Point 
is proposing to use savings (and the vehicle) from the cancelled Harbor Shuttle to support 
route restructuring, which would allow the Dana Point Trolley to expand from one route 
to two (i.e. north and south) routes, which Dana Point believes will support greater 
efficiency and increased ridership.  

 
  



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs  
September 2019 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 

3 

 
Transfers 
 
The CTFP Guidelines allow agencies to request to transfer 100 percent of savings of 
funds between subsequent phases within a project. Funds can only be transferred to a 
phase that has already been awarded competitive funds. Such requests must be made 
prior to the acceptance of a final report and submitted as part of the semi-annual review 
process. During this review cycle, the following transfer request was submitted. 
 
The City of Anaheim is requesting to transfer unused project savings from the Ball Road 
and Anaheim Boulevard Intersection Project (14-ANAH-ICE-3713) right-of-way phase to 
the Ball Road and Anaheim Boulevard Intersection Project (15-ANAH-ICE-3764) 
construction phase.   



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 9, 2020 
 
 
To: Transit Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Measure M2 Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 

Project V Ridership Report 
 
 
Overview 
 
Measure M2 establishes a competitive program through Project V to fund 
community-based local transit circulators, designed to complement regional 
transit services. A ridership report on 20 active Project V services operating 
through the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2018-19 and first quarter of 2019-20 is 

.  
 
Recommendations 
 
A. Receive and file Project V Ridership Report as an information item. 
 
B.  V-funded 

services to enhance route productivity, and also authorize a six-month 
delay in achieving minimum required performance standard for year one 
of service. 

 
Background 
 
The Community-Based Transit Circulators Program (Project V) is a competitive 
program under Measure M2 (M2), which provides funding to develop, 
implement, and operate local transit services. Services eligible under the 
program include community-based circulators, shuttles, trolleys, and  
demand-responsive services intended to complement regional transit, while also 
better suiting local needs in areas not adequately served by regional transit. 
 
M2 Project V services are required to adhere to performance standards.  
If services are not meeting standards, or are trending toward not meeting 
minimum standards, Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) staff will 
 

  

 



Measure M2 Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Project V Ridership Report 

Page 2 
 

 

 

meet with the local agency and suggest adjustments, with an overall goal of 
attempting to improve ridership (i.e. boardings per revenue vehicle hour 
[B/RVH]). If a service continues to perform below minimum performance 
standards, M2 Project V funds will be cancelled, consistent with Board of 
Directors (Board)-approved program guidelines. If M2 Project V funds are 
cancelled, local agencies can still participate in future funding cycles with new 
service concepts that are anticipated to be more productive.  

Project V-funded service performance is reported to the OCTA Board  
semi-annually. This reporting period includes ridership information for the fourth 
quarter of fiscal year 2018-19 and first quarter of fiscal year 2019-20,  
(i.e. April 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019), and reports on 20 active 
services. 

Discussion 
 
Current Project V services include a combination of seasonal, special event, 
commuter, fixed-route, and demand-response projects, which meet a variety of 
community needs. The prior ridership report reflected 19 services in operation. 
Since that time, the City of Dana Point initiated its Continuity and Expansion and 
Weekend Service, which was approved by the Board during the 2018 Project V 
call for projects (call). As such, this ridership report reflects 20 active services.  
 
All active services must achieve or exceed six B/RVH by the end of year one of 
service and ten B/RVH by the end of year two of service.  After the second year 
of service, ten B/RVH must be maintained (or exceeded) through the remainder 
of the Project V grant period.  
 
Active Project V services are identified below. Ridership details and performance 
standards are provided in Attachment A.  
 
The La Habra  Special Event Service did not operate during this reporting 
period.  Therefore, no information is provided in this report for that service.   
 
Services meeting or exceeding their respective minimum performance standards 
included the following: 
 
 County of Orange - Local Circulator and Special Event Service  

(OC Ranch Ride),  
 Dana Point - Summer Trolley and Seasonal Shuttle, 
 Dana Point - Pacific Coast Highway and Special Event Trolley, 
 Huntington Beach - Holiday and Event Shuttle,  
 Laguna Beach - Summer/Weekend Trolley and Seasonal Service, 
 Laguna Beach - Summer Breeze Bus Service, 



Measure M2 Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Project V Ridership Report 

Page 3 
 

 

 

 Lake Forest - Commuter Vanpool Service Irvine Station and Ossur, 
 Lake Forest - Commuter Shuttle Service Irvine Station and Panasonic, 
 Newport Beach - Balboa Peninsula Seasonal Trolley, 
 Newport Beach - Balboa Peninsula Seasonal Trolley Expansion, 
 San Clemente - Summer Weekend Trolley and Seasonal Service, 
 San Clemente - Summer Weekday Trolley and Seasonal Service 

Expansion, 
 San Juan Capistrano - Special Event and Weekend Summer Trolley, and 
 San Clemente - Demand-Response Service1. 

 
Services not at their respective minimum performance standard requirement 
included the following: 
 
 Laguna Beach  Weekend Residential Trolley Service, and 
 Mission Viejo - Local Community Circulator. 

 
The Laguna Beach Weekend Residential Trolley Service2 did not meet the 
minimum performance target in the timeframe required. OCTA notified the City 
of Laguna Beach (Laguna Beach) of this finding on July 31, 2019, and  
Laguna Beach cancelled the service effective September 30, 2019.  It should be 
noted that as part of the 2020 Project V call, Laguna Beach is exploring 
implementation of other service concepts and options for some of its other more 
productive routes.   
 

October 2016, and 
is currently reporting seven B/RVH, which is below the ten B/RVH performance 
threshold required for year two (and the subsequent remaining years) of the 
grant.  However, on May 13, 2019, the Board, in recognition of several complex 
issues and challenges confronting this service, authorized a policy exception to 
the minimum performance standard in order to give Mission Viejo an additional 
year to modify the service and meet minimum performance targets.  
action was conditioned upon Mission Viejo taking over responsibility to operate 
the service.  Mission Viejo began operating the service in October, and has until 
the end of June 2020, to achieve ten B/RVH. If by that time, the performance 

                                            
1 
to better reflect the dynamics of this unique program.  As such, its performance standard is 
reported as boardings per hour of service (no minimum), so long as the cost per boarding 

  Based upon the last invoicing received 
  

 
2 ast three M2  
Community-Based Transit Circulators Program Project V ridership reports, which were 
presented in July 2018, April 2019, and August 2019.  



Measure M2 Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Project V Ridership Report 

Page 4 
 

 

 

requirement (of ten B/RVH) has not been met, Project V funding for the service 
will be discontinued. 
 
Services in Start-Up Period: 
 
 Dana Point - Trolley Continuity and Expansion and Weekend Service, 
 Irvine - Irvine iShuttle Route E - Irvine Metrolink Station Service - East, 

and 
 Irvine - Irvine iShuttle Route F - Tustin Metrolink Station/Irvine Business 

Complex West. 
 
During this reporting period, the City of Dana Point initiated its Continuity and 
Expansion and Weekend Service, which was authorized by the Board during the 
2018 Project V call. In its initial month of service, the first-year minimum 
performance requirement of six B/RVH was achieved.  
 

(listed above) were launched 
in February 2019, and are still in the initial start-up period. During this reporting 
period, the Irvine iShuttle Route E performed at three B/RVH and the Irvine 
iShuttle Route F performed at five B/RVH. Irvine has until January 2020 to 
achieve its six B/RVH requirement for the first year of service.  Irvine is also 
currently working with OCTA on a route modification concept(s), which may 
improve productivity. However, given the amount of time it may take to 
implement the requested route modifications, a six-month delay in achieving the 
year one minimum performance standard for iShuttle services is requested.  
 
OCTA staff will continue to closely monitor services that are at or below minimum 
performance standards and will meet with local agency staff on ideas and 
concepts to improve service productivity and ridership, when appropriate. Staff 
will also continue to provide twice yearly updates to the Board on overall  
Project V status and performance.   
 
Summary 
 
A status report on Project V services is provided for information purposes.  
Staff will continue to work with local agencies and monitor these services.   
The next M2 Community-Based Transit Circulators Program Project V Ridership 
Report is scheduled for July 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Measure M2 Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Project V Ridership Report 

Page 5 
 

 

 

Attachment  
 
A. Project V Services  Ridership Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 
 

Alfonso Hernandez 
 

Kia Mortazavi  
Senior Transportation Funding Analyst,  
Local Programs 
(714) 560-5363  

Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 



Reporting Period: Q4 of FY 2018-19 and Q1 of FY 2019-20

Agency Service Description
Measure M2 

Project V Funds
Service Type

Service Start 
Month/Year

Boardings Per 
Revenue Vehicle 

Hour (B/RVH)1 
Notes

County of Orange
Local Circulator and Special Event 
Service

2,041,547$         Fixed-Route and Special Event June 2017 11

Dana Point Summer Trolley and Seasonal 
Shuttle

2,456,511$         Seasonal Fixed-Route and Special 
Event

June 2015 14

Dana Point
Pacific Coast Highway and 
Special Event Trolley

905,968$            Seasonal Fixed-Route June 2017 13

Huntington Beach Holiday and Event Shuttle 93,287$              Special Event July 2015 22

Irvine
Irvine iShuttle Route E - Irvine 
Station - East 

2,705,984$         Fixed-Route February 2019 3
Service recently initiated and productivity is expected to 
increase. 

Irvine
Irvine iShuttle Route F - Tustin 
Station - Irvine Business Complex

2,712,258$         Fixed-Route February 2019 5
Service recently initiated and productivity is expected to 
increase. 

La Habra Special Event Service 96,810$              Special Event November 2016 N/A2 No special event service provided during reporting period.

Laguna Beach
Summer/Weekend Trolley and 
Seasonal Service

3,559,860$         Fixed-Route and Special Event March 2015 23

Laguna Beach
Weekend Residential Trolley 
Service 

1,967,400$         Fixed-Route July 2017 6 City canceled service on September 30, 2019. 

Laguna Beach Summer Breeze Bus Service 634,357$            Seasonal Fixed-Route July 2018 29

Lake Forest
Commuter Vanpool Service Irvine 
Station and Ossur

148,855$            Vanpool/Commuter July 2015 24

Lake Forest
Commuter Shuttle Service Irvine 
Station and Panasonic

1,226,862$         Vanpool/Commuter June 2017 10
Advisory letter issued to City regarding maintaining the 
minimum performance standard for service (10 B/RVH). 

Mission Viejo Local Community Circulator 3,332,879$         Fixed-Route October 2016 7

The Board of Directors authorized a one year extension to 
June 2020 to allow Mission Viejo time to achieve the 
Project V minimum performance standard of ten B/RVH, 
subject to Mission Viejo taking over administration of the 
service. As of October 14, 2019, Mission Viejo has taken 
over administration of the service. 

Newport Beach Balboa Peninsula Seasonal Trolley 685,454$            
Seasonal Fixed-Route and Special 
Event

June 2017 14

Newport Beach
Balboa Peninsula Seasonal Trolley 
Expansion

278,400$            Seasonal Fixed-Route July 2018 20

San Clemente
Summer Weekend Trolley and 
Seasonal Service

1,181,393$         
Seasonal Fixed-Route and Special 
Event

May 2017 41

San Clemente
Summer Weekday Trolley and 
Seasonal Service Expansion

1,537,200$         Seasonal Fixed-Route July 2018 13

San Juan Capistrano Special Event and Weekend 
Summer Trolley Service

958,642$            Seasonal Fixed-Route and Special 
Event

July 2018 26

Dana Point
Dana Point Trolley Continuity and 
Expansion and Weekend Service

1,745,065$         Seasonal Fixed-Route September 2019 10 Service recently initiated

Agency Service Description
Measure M2 

Project V Funds
Service Type

Service Start 
Month/Year

Boardings Per 
Hour of Service 

(B/HOS)
1 

Notes

San Clemente On-Demand  914,400$            Ride Hailing October 2016 8 -

1. Rounded to the next whole number.

2. N/A - No service hours during reporting period (seasonal services).

ACRONYMS

Q4 - Quarter 4  (April - June)

Q1 - Quarter 1  (July - September)

FY - Fiscal year

N/A - Not applicable

NOTE:  Services below the minimum performance standard are shaded

Project V Services - Ridership Report

Minimum Performance Standards for B/RVH

·  Six passenger B/RVH by end of year one (12 months from the first day of operating the service). 

·  Maintain six B/RVH and meet or exceed ten B/RVH by end of year two.

·  Ten B/RVH must then be maintained every year thereafter. 

Minimum Performance Standards for B/HOS

·  Staff will continue to monitor and measure service performance and assess appropriate next steps for this program 

which will include evaluation of all project related efforts and existing policies in order to determine how best to support  

and administer this emerging transit delivery model. 

ATTACHMENT A


